## Financial Service Guide (FSG) Effective date: 19 January 2018

incorporating member product guide

Savings Term Deposits Payment Services Insurance Home Loans Credit Facilities





Police Bank Ltd

ABN 95 087 650 799. AFSL/Australian Credit Licence No. 240018. 25 Pelican Street, Surry Hills NSW 2010. Customs Bank is a division of Police Bank Ltd. All terms and conditions that apply to Police Bank also apply to Customs Bank.

### TABLE OF CONTENTS

1.	Our Financial Services Guide	2
2.	About Your Financial Services Guide	5
3.	Basic Banking Products Summaries	6
3.1	Savings Accounts	6
3.2	Payment Facilities	7
3.3	Investment Accounts	8
	duct Profiles ır Basic Banking Products at a Glance)	9
4.	Membership	12
5.	General Terms & Conditions	14
5.1	Authorised Signatories	14
5.2	Joint Accounts	15
5.3	Making Deposits	17
5.4	Making Withdrawals	22
5.5	Making Payments	26
5.6	Payment Order to Loans	29
5.7	About your Accounts - Overdrawing, Account Statements, Payment Authority / Account Combination and Account Closure	29
5.8	Edvest and Reduced Fees Program	32
5.9	Changes	33
<u>6.</u>	Privacy, Complaints, Information and Compliance	34
7.	Specific Terms & Conditions	35
7.1	Savings Accounts	35
7.2	Investment Accounts	35
7.3	Payment Facilities	36
7.4	Fees and Charges	37
8.	Financial Hardship Assistance	37

### 1. OUR FINANCIAL SERVICES GUIDE

This Financial Services Guide (FSG) is designed to help you decide whether to use our products and services. The FSG contains information on:

- Product details and advice;
- Our products and services;
- Our business partners and commissions;
- Our fees and other rewards;
- What to do if you have a complaint;
- How to contact us.

This document should be read in conjunction with our **Schedule** of Fees and Charges brochure (available on our website, at our Service Centres and upon request).

#### PRODUCT DETAILS

Our Financial Services Guide (FSG) is designed to give you information you need to make decisions about our products.

You will receive a Product Disclosure Statement (PDS) which serves the same purpose for insurance products including your policy terms and conditions.

Terms and conditions will also be provided to you before taking out other products including Home Loans, Personal Loans, Car Loans, Credit Card and Overdraft Facilities.

#### OUR PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

We are licensed by the Australian Securities and Investments Commission to advise on and deal in a range of products:

- Savings Accounts: basic S1 Easy Access savings account and other specialist accounts;
- Payment Services: Direct Debit, Periodic Payments, Redidial, Visa Debit Card, BPAY<sup>®</sup> and Internet Banking.
- Investment Accounts: from 3 months to 60 months;
- Insurance: general insurance (home/contents, travel, landlord, motor vehicle) and consumer credit (loan repayment) insurance.

We are the product issuer for all products other than insurance products.

#### OUR CREDIT FACILITIES

We also provide a range of credit facilities. Please refer to our separate product brochures for further information.

#### OUR BUSINESS PARTNERS AND COMMISSIONS

Insurance

Insurer	Product	Commission Per Policy
Allianz Australia	Motor Prestige Insurance	10%
Insurance Ltd	Marine & Caravan Vehicle Insu	urance
Allianz Australia	Motor Classic Vehicle Insuran	ce 5%
Insurance Ltd	(CTP) Greenslip	5%
Allianz Australia	Home & Contents Insurance	18%
Insurance Ltd	Landlords Insurance	
Allianz Australia#	Travel Insurance	30%
Insurance Ltd		
Allianz Australia	Life Insurance	20%
Life Insurance		
Limited~		
AIG Australia	Personal Injury Cover	20% of
		premium
QBE Insurance	Credit Protect Insurance	20%
(Australia)	Mortgage Protect Insurance	
Limited Group*	Continuing Credit Insurance	
St Andrews	Term Life and Accidental	20%
Insurance	Death Insurance	

#We have been authorised by the licensee AGA Assistance Australia Pty Limited AFSL 245631, a company of the Allianz Global Assistance Group, to arrange travel insurance which is underwritten by Allianz Australia Insurance Limited AFSL 234708.

~ Insurance is underwritten by Allianz Australia Life Insurance Limited ABN 27 076 033 782, AFS License No. 296559 (Allianz Life). We receive up to 20% commission based on the premium paid for each policy, and up to 10% for renewals.

\* We can issue, vary, renew or cancel Consumer Credit insurance policies on behalf of QBE Insurance (Australia) Limited. ABN: 78 003 191 035 AFSL: 239545 and Integrity Life (Australia) Limited. ABN: 83 089 981 073 AFSL: 245492 under a binder authority, and receive up to 20% commission based on the premium paid for each policy.

#### Payment Services Travelex Ltd

We provide foreign currency through Travelex Ltd. We receive commission equal to 1% to the value issued to you inclusive of GST (\$10.00 minimum). Please refer to Schedule of Fees and Charges brochure for more information.

#### **Payment Services Western Union Business Solutions**

We provide Drafts, Telegraphic Transfers, International Inward Funds and International Cheque Deposits through Western Union Business Solutions. Refer to the Schedule of Fees and Charges brochure for more information. Please note that

Telegraphic Transfers are sent via a network of correspondent banks, which sometimes levy a small handling charge on your payment. Any such fees, and payment delays are out of our control.

#### Western Union (Ireland) Limited

We provide Western Union Money in Minutes through Western Union Network (Ireland) Limited. We receive commission equal to 20% of the sender fee received on transactions both sent and paid at a Police Bank Service Centre, and a 20% share of any net foreign exchange gains earned on transactions performed by Police Bank. Please refer to the Schedule of Fees and Charges brochure for more information on fees, and refer to our website to obtain the full product Terms and Conditions.

#### Access Pre-Paid Australia Pty Ltd

We provide Cash Passport through Access Pre-Paid Australia Pty Ltd. We receive commission equal to 1% to the value issued to you inclusive of GST (\$10.00 minimum). Please refer to the Schedule of Fees and Charges brochure for more information

#### BPAY

We receive commission from BPAY on Visa credit transactions of .27% dollar value of each transaction plus \$0.32 of the payment per transaction and on debit transactions we receive \$0.44 payment per transaction. For each individual BPAY View transaction we receive a delivery fee of \$0.04.

#### **Bridges Financial Services**

We may receive referral commission ranging from 0% to 30% of any fee you pay to Bridges Financial Services Pty Ltd plus an incentive payment (which will not increase the amount you pay Bridges or us). Staff may receive an incentive (worth up to \$50) if they refer you to Bridges and you take out a financial plan.

#### Visa

We also receive commission from Visa International on card transactions in the range of .12% to .57% of the relevant transaction amount.

#### Who we act for and when we are paid

When providing these products to you we are acting on behalf of our business partners and not as your agent. All commissions are paid to us by our business partners when you take out or use the product or service.

The Bank, as a mutual organisation, is bound to act in the interest of its Members. Our Members are our owners. We provide good value products and services to Members. We usually only have one provider of each product or service as set out in this FSG. Commission income and staff incentives are designed to serve Members by promoting Member satisfaction and commercial viability - they should never undermine the quality of the advice and service we provide.

#### **OUR FEES AND OTHER REWARDS**

We charge the service fees applicable to our products and services as set out in our Schedule of Fees and Charges brochure (available on our website, at our Service Centres and upon request).

We pay staff a salary and run incentive schemes linked to sales of insurance, loans or other products. Staff may then receive, as a small proportion of overall remuneration, a monthly bonus or an occasional non-monetary benefit such as a pre-paid holiday or gift voucher.

#### WHAT TO DO IF YOU HAVE A COMPLAINT

Firstly, contact a Member Service Officer (see back page for contact details). If you need further assistance, you can use our internal dispute resolution service (see our Complaints Handling & Dispute Resolution Guide for details).

We also belong to the External Dispute Centre - Financial Ombudsman Service Limited (FOS). This way, if we cannot resolve your dispute with us, you can have the matter determined independently by FOS (phone: 1800 367 287).

### 2. ABOUT YOUR FINANCIAL SERVICES GUIDE

#### SAVINGS, INVESTMENT ACCOUNTS AND PAYMENT FACILITIES

Your **Financial Services Guide** is designed to help you make an informed decision on whether to use our products. It includes product information and terms and conditions. You should also read our:

- Product brochure including a product summary and terms and conditions (this document);
- Schedule of Fees and Charges detailing costs related to each product and service;
- Interest Rate Brochure listing current rates for savings and investment products.

You will also receive Access Methods Terms and Conditions for BPAY, Redidial, Internet Banking, Visa Debit Card, Redicard and Member Chequing.

Details on our rules, constitution and how to join are available on request.

#### MEMBER CARE STATEMENT

Please read the Terms and Conditions for our products carefully before making decisions. Always retain a copy of the Terms and Conditions or a FSG for future reference. Each relevant provision of the Customer Owned Banking Code of Practice will apply to your accounts and payment facilities.

These Terms and Conditions need to be read with other applicable terms and conditions of use for specific products and

the relevant codes that apply. If you are in any doubt, please call us on 131 728 and talk to one of our Member Services Officers.

#### OUR IDENTITY

We are a Mutual Bank. Our central governing document is our Constitution which sets out our major rules that govern how we operate as a Bank. We are a Member of Cuscal Limited. We are also a corporation and as such, we are subject to the Corporations Act and regulated by the Australian Securities and Investment Commission (ASIC) along with the Australian Prudential Regulation Authority (APRA).

As a Mutual, we have adopted the Customer Owned Banking Code of Practice (COBCOP) as a set of standards or promises that relates to all our dealings with you. For more information about COBCOP - please visit our website www.policebank.com.au (www.customsbank.com.au for Customs Bank Members).

#### OTHER IMPORTANT INFORMATION

You can confirm the opening or closing of any account or payment facility by calling us on 131 728 and requesting written confirmation.

### 3. BASIC BANKING PRODUCTS SUMMARIES

#### 3.1 SAVINGS ACCOUNTS

Our Savings Accounts are designed to cater for all your access and transaction needs. You can choose one account for all your needs or use a combination of accounts for budgeting and cash management.

#### Product Benefits

- Your S1 account is a basic transaction account;
- You can use all of our payment facilities on your S1 account including debit card, cheques, Internet Banking, Phone Banking and Bank@Post;
- We have special purpose accounts to help you budget and make bill payments;
- We have other accounts that provide higher rates of interest plus at call access to your funds eg. our Online SuperSaver Account and Bonus Saver Account;
- Interest is calculated daily and paid to your account twice yearly on most accounts;
- For current Interest Rates please refer to our website (see back page for details).

#### Fees and Charges

- No monthly or annual account keeping fees apply;
- Transaction fees may apply to your payment facilities and other services. Transaction charges in excess of any monthly allowances benefit will be debited to your

account on the last day of the month in which the fees were incurred;

- Reduced Fees Program you can minimise (or even avoid) transaction fees and charges, (see our Schedule of Fees and Charges and the Reduced Fees Program brochure for details);
- A Dormancy Fee applies if you do not use an account for 3 years (see our Schedule of Fees and Charges for details).

#### Things to Remember

- Your money earns a lower rate of interest in a savings account than in a term deposit;
- Market interest rates may rise or fall for each of these savings account products;
- Withdrawal and deposit restrictions apply to some higher interest bearing accounts. See our Product Profiles (page 9-10) for more details on your Savings Accounts;
- Online SuperSaver Accounts can only be operated via Internet Banking and Redidial Telephone Banking.

#### 3.2 PAYMENT FACILITIES

We have a range of payment facilities to help you with your bill payments, income and other payment needs:

- Visa Debit Card a debit card you can use for cash withdrawals and EFTPOS transactions\*;
- Redicard a debit card you can use for cash withdrawals and EFTPOS transactions\*;
- Internet banking- giving you internet access to your account information and payment facilities\*;
- Redidial our phone banking service offering access to your account information and payment facilities\*;
- Direct Debit the facility to make direct debit payments on your savings accounts;
- Periodical Payment the facility to make set periodical payments;
- Direct Transfer a once only electronic funds transfer;
- Direct Credit for your wages or other income from your employer or other payer;
- Cheque Facility giving you the convenience of cheque book payments\*;
- BPAY for your bill payments with access to the BPAY system\*.
- PayAnyone our facility that allows you to make payments to a mobile number or email address\*.

\* For these products Access Methods Terms and Conditions will be provided on application or request.

You can establish any payment facility on your S1 account. You can set up some payment facilities on other accounts.

#### Fees and Charges

- Transaction fees may apply to your payment facilities and other services;
- Fees may also apply where you have a payment dishonoured or request a stop payment;
- We are also paid commission on BPAY and Visa transactions;
- See our Schedule of Fees and Charges for details;
- Third parties may also impose a surcharge on electronic transactions.

#### Things to Remember

- Always maintain sufficient funds in your accounts to cover payments you wish to make;
- Redicard and Visa debit card facilities have set electronic limits to a maximum of \$1000 per day per card;
- Always protect your PIN for Visa or Redicards and passwords for Internet Banking and Redidial. Do not reveal PINs or passwords to anyone;
- Always report any breach of security or misuse of a payment service by calling us immediately on 131 728;
- If you unreasonably delay notifying us, your possible loss as a result of unauthorised transactions on your account(s) may increase;
- If not properly safeguarded, your Member cheques may be the subject of unauthorised use or alteration for which you may be liable;
- Although we take all precautions with respect to electronic transactions, the security of electronic funds transfer transactions can never be guaranteed (particularly in electronic mediums such as the internet, there is always a risk of interception of data by a rogue or hacker);
- See our Product Profiles (page 9-10) for more details on your Payment Facilities.

#### 3.3 INVESTMENT ACCOUNTS

We have a range of investment accounts to earn you interest on your savings at a fixed rate over a range of terms to suit you. If you want regular income, we can pay you interest fortnightly or monthly. Other accounts pay you interest quarterly, twice yearly, yearly or on maturity;

We have a wide range of accounts - so it's up to you to choose the one that suits your needs;

Our Edvest range (available to Members who are 45 years or over) can offer you a higher rate of interest and more regular interest payments.

#### Investment Accounts

We offer investment term deposits from 3 months to 60 months;

# Product Profiles - Savings Accounts and Payment Facilities

Savings Accounts	S1 Easy Access	S2 Budget Manager	S3 Christmas Club	S5 Pension Maximiser	S6 Insurance Saver	S8 Online SuperSaver	S10 Savings Plus	S11 Safeguard	S15 Market Linked	S17 Retirement Plus	S21 Edvest Redifund Plus	S23 Bonus Saver	S24 Dynamo Account	S26 Mortgage Offset
Your Savings Account Features	Your day to day savings account for all your basic banking needs. Your funds are at call and earn daily interest. You can access your money by card or cheque, set up bill payments and use internet or phone banking.	This is a special purpose savings account to help you set aside money for purchases, bills or holidays. Your funds are at call and earn daily interest. You can set up bill payments and direct entries and use internet and phone banking on this account.	This is a higher interest earning savings account to help you finance your Christmas spending. Internet and phone banking are available on this account.	An account designed for pensioners and retirees.	This is a special purpose savings account you can use to set aside money for insurance payments. Internet and phone banking are available. Direct debits can be set up for your payments.	Do all your banking online. This savings account allows you to conduct all your banking online and earn a higher rate of interest.	You can use this high interest rate savings account to earn more on your money. You still have at call access to your money. However, you do not have debit card access to your funds. Internet and phone banking services available on this account.	This is a special purpose savings account to help you avoid exception fees such as Overdrawn Service fee and Dishonour fees. Your funds are at call and earn daily interest. You can set up bill payments and direct entries and use internet and phone banking on this account. A Redicard is available to access your funds.	This is our top interest bearing savings account (non-Edvest). Minimum balance, deposit and withdrawal limits apply. You do not have debit card access to your funds. Internet and phone banking services are available on this account.	An account designed for pensioners and retirees.	Edvest Members (Over 45yrs) enjoy a bonus rate above our S15 Market Linked Account. Minimum balance, deposit and withdrawal limits apply. Interest is paid Quarterly. You do not have debit card access to your funds. Internet and phone banking services are available on this account.	This is a special purpose savings account created to enable you to earn extra interest if you do not withdraw funds. Funds are available at call. You can use Internet and Redidial Phone Banking on the account.	This is a special purpose children's savings account created to enable children to earn extra interest if they do not withdraw funds. Funds are available at call. You can use Internet and Redidial Phone Banking on the account.	This is a special purpose savings account created to help reduce the interest you pay on your mortgage. Funds are available at call. You can set up bill payments and use internet and phone banking on this account.
Minimum Balance	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$5,000	\$0	\$5,000	\$100	\$0	\$0
When we pay you interest	Twice a year: on 30/6 and 31/12	Twice a year: on 30/6 and 31/12	Once a year: on 31/10 unless you close your account early, when we will pay interest on the day you close your account.	Twice a year: on 30/6 and 31/12	Twice a year: on 30/6 and 31/12	Quarterly: on 31/3, 30/6, 30/9 and 31/12 each year	Twice a year: on 30/6 and 31/12	Twice a year: on 30/6 and 31/12	Twice a year: on 30/6 and 31/12	Twice a year: on 30/6 and 31/12	Quarterly: on 31/3, 30/6, 30/9 and 31/12 each year	Monthly. Bonus Interest rate applies if no withdrawals and a minimum deposit of \$100 are made within a month	Monthly. Bonus Interest rate applies if no withdrawals and a minimum deposit of \$20 are made within a month	No interest is payable for this product
Accessing your mone	ey, making payments a	and account informatio	n											
Visa Card	1													
Redicard	1							1						
Internet Banking	1	1	1	1		✓	1	1	✓	1	✓	✓	1	✓
Redidial	1	1	1	1		✓	1	1	1	1	✓	✓	1	✓
Direct Debit	1	1		1	$\checkmark$ insurance only	✓	1		✓	1	✓			✓
Periodical Payment	1	1		1		1	1	1	1	1	✓			1
Electronic Transfer	1	1	1	1		1	1	1	1	1	✓			5
Direct Credit	1	1	1	1	1	1		1	1	1	✓	✓	1	1
Overdraft	1													
Cheque Facility	1													
BPAY	1	1		1		1		1	1	1	✓			1
ATM/Eftpos	1							1						
Bank@Post	1							1						
Special Conditions			Withdrawals made during the period 1/1 to 31/10 each year are subject to a withdrawal fee.	This account is only available to Individual Members. No business accounts are allowed for this product.	This account is only available for the payment of insurance premiums.	Accessible only through internet banking and Redidial. No card or cheque access. This account is not available for business accounts, only individual members.		Direct Debits, Member Chequing and Visa Cards are not available for this product. Account can not become overdrawn at any time.	The minimum deposit and withdrawal amount is \$500. No withdrawals are allowed for up to 7 days after deposit.	This account is only available to Individual Members. No business accounts are allowed for this product.	Only available to Edvest Members. The minimum deposit and withdrawal amount is \$500. No withdrawals are allowed for up to 7 days after deposit.	Minimum of \$100 to be deposited each month in order to achieve bonus interest. If a withdrawal is made in a month then no bonus interest will be paid.	Minimum of \$20 to be deposited each month in order to achieve bonus interest. If a withdrawal is made in a month then no bonus interest will be paid. The account will automatically transfer to a Bonus Saver Account [S23] when the member turns 18 years.	Only available with nominated home loans with us.

Term Deposits	11	12	13	15	I10	l12	124	125	129	131	132	133	152	153	154	155
Length of Term (months)	3	3	3	3	6	12	12	6	24	36	48	60	24	36	48	60
Minimum and Maximum Deposit (\$)	1,000 9,999	1,000 9,999	10,000 +													

#### Product Features for Investment Accounts - all Members

We have designed a range of Investment Accounts to allow you to choose the term, interest rate and interest payment frequency that suits you.

You can choose to have interest paid monthly, twice a year, annually or simply at the end of the term (at maturity).

Interest rates are fixed over the term of your deposit. For interest rates for new deposits see our Interest Rates Brochure available at all Branches and on our website.

No fees are payable on any Investment accounts. Please note: Investments of over \$200,000 are accepted subject to confirmation.

When we pay you interest	When we pay you interest															
At maturity	1			$\checkmark$		✓		1								
Monthly		1	✓		✓		1						1	1	✓	✓
Annually						√										
Six monthly									$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$	1				

#### Things you should know about Investment Accounts

How would you like interest to be paid? We can pay you your interest by transfer to an external account or payment to a Police Bank account nominated by you. If we pay you interest at maturity, we can also pay interest by re-investing with a further deposit.

**Reduced Interest** - If you withdraw your deposit before the end of the agreed term, then we will pay a reduced rate of interest from the date of deposit to the date of withdrawal. Please note: if we have paid you interest during the term and that amount exceeds the reduced interest payable, then we will deduct the difference from your deposit.

Edvest Term Deposits	14	122	123	145	146	147	148	149	I51	158
Length of Term (months)	3	12	6	6	12	18	24	36	3	24
Minimum and Maximum Deposit (\$)	10,000 +	1,000 +	1,000 +	5,000 +	5,000 +	5,000 +	5,000 +	5,000 +	1,000 +	10,000 +

#### Product Features for Edvest Accounts - for eligible members 45 years and over

We have designed a range of Investment Accounts to allow you to choose the term, interest rate and interest payment frequency that suits you.

You can choose to have interest paid fortnightly, twice a year, annually or simply at the end of the term (at maturity).

Interest rates are fixed over the term of your deposit. For interest rates for new deposits see our Interest Rates Brochure available at all Branches and the Bank's website. No fees are payable on any Edvest Investment Accounts. Please note: Investments of over \$200,000 are accepted subject to confirmation.

When we pay you interest	Vhen we pay you interest													
At maturity	✓	1	1						$\checkmark$					
Annually		1												
Annually Six monthly										✓				
Fortnightly				1	✓	✓	✓	✓						

Minimum deposit balance and term requirements apply.

#### Interest Rates

- We offer different rates of interest for each investment account;
- Generally, the longer the term you choose, the higher the rate of interest we pay;
- We also have targeted short-term accounts with high rates of interest;
- For current Interest Rates please refer to our website (see back page for details).

#### Product Benefits

- Your interest rate is fixed for the term of the investment account;
- There are no account keeping fees payable on any investment account products;
- Interest is calculated daily and paid at maturity or during the term as you choose.

#### Things to Remember

- Market interest rates may rise or fall over the term of the investment. This should be taken into consideration and can affect the rate you receive if you roll-over your investment;
- If you withdraw your investment before the end of the term, you will be paid a reduced rate of interest;
- The amount on deposit in an Investment Account can only be increased on Maturity.

See our Product Profiles (page 10) for more details on your Investment Accounts.

We may offer Special Investment Accounts from time to time. Details are available on our website (see back page for details).

#### Tax Implications - Savings and Investment Accounts

Please note:

- Interest earned on your Savings or Investment Account must be declared for income tax purposes;
- If you do not provide us with your tax file number, we will deduct tax from your interest earned at the highest personal income tax rate.

### 4. MEMBERSHIP

If you wish to open an account with us, you first need to become a Member of the Bank.

You may then apply to open Savings Accounts with us (either on your own or with others) and apply for our account products to assist you in banking with us.

We then consider your account and/or account product application and if approved, provide the account(s) and/or account product(s) to you. You must be a Member before we are able to do any banking business with you.

#### Identification

We must verify your identity when you open a new savings or investment account or become a signatory to an account. We will need to see identification whenever you contact us to process a transaction on your account.

When you join the Bank, we need to obtain documentary proof of your identity or a statement from an acceptable "Certifier" who has seen and verified your identification documents.

We must do this under the Anti Money Laundering and Counter Terrorism Financing Act (AML/CTF) to help prevent people from using the financial system for tax evasion, money laundering and terrorism financing. We support this nationwide effort to fight crime and will do everything we can to make these procedures as smooth as possible for Members.

#### Identity Checks

To prove your identity to the Bank you must supply the Bank with relevant identification documents. A list of the required documents can be obtained from the Bank. Member's personal information may be provided to a third party for the purpose of verifying your details to meet the compliance obligations under the AML/CTF Act legislative requirements.

#### Statement from Certifier

After sighting your required identification documents, an acceptable certifier can sign a statement to prove your identity. We will give you a form for this purpose.

Judges of a Court, Magistrates, Chief Executive Officer of a Commonwealth Court, a Notary Public, a Police Officer, an Agent of Australia Post, a permanent employee of Australia Post (with 2 or more years of continuous service), a Registrar or Deputy Registrar of a Court, a Justice of the Peace and a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in Australia, CPA Australia or the National Institute of Accountants with 2 or more years continuous service are all acceptable certifiers.

#### JOINT MEMBERSHIP

All new Memberships must be 'single'; i.e. in the name of one person.

If you want to have a joint account, each individual Member

must join together with another Member to open a joint account. Please note: all existing joint Memberships continue in the same manner as they did before these terms and conditions came into effect.

#### TRUST

Under a trust, a Membership is opened in your name but you hold the Membership account for someone else.

You can open any type of account in a trust Membership as a trust account.

The same terms and conditions apply to trust accounts as for other accounts.

When a trust Membership is opened:

- We need to see any supporting documentation (e.g. for a deceased estate, the will and death certificate);
- We may need to collect additional information about relevant parties (i.e. the trustee and the beneficiary);

#### CHILDREN

When you open any account for a child:

- We need to identify the child with appropriate identification;
- For children under 12 years of age, the account is opened in the child's name, however the adult concerned is the Authority to Operate and accepts responsibility for any legal issue that may arise due to the account being opened in the child's name, providing an indemnity;
- A child under 12 years of age cannot be issued with an access card to the account. Any card issued to the account would be in the name of the adult acting as Authority to Operate.

#### COMPANIES, ASSOCIATIONS AND CLUBS

Membership is open to organisations including:

- Companies;
- Incorporated associations;
- Social clubs.

Organisations can open most accounts, subject to these conditions:

- We need to identify the organisation and the individuals authorised to sign documents for the organisation;
- We need to see documents confirming the appointment of the individuals authorised to sign documents for the organisation.

#### **Financial Difficulties**

Always contact us promptly if you ever need help with a financial difficulty especially if you have an overdraft or a loan. We will always take reasonable steps to help Members who are finding it difficult to repay loans. We can look at options to reduce your payments or extend your loan term. The earlier you contact us, the sooner we can help.

#### 5. GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOR SAVINGS ACCOUNTS, INVESTMENT ACCOUNTS AND PAYMENT SERVICES

#### 5.1 AUTHORISED SIGNATORIES

#### General

You can authorise a person to operate your accounts. This person is your "authorised signatory".

The authorised signatory or signatories to the account can act fully and effectively in all dealings, matters and transactions in respect of the account(s) except the application for a loan; or credit facility or a redraw from a loan account.

A signatory has the authority to do the following:

- Carry out withdrawals on the account, for any purpose, including signing cheques;
- Make enquiries about account balances and transactions on the account, including any debit balance or available credit on a transactional (Continuing Credit Facility) account.

A signatory DOES NOT have the authority to:

- Change any of the signatory authorisations on the account;
- Give a 3rd party access or authority to operate on the account;
- Make enquiries about loan account balances or available credit on a loan account (except for transactional Continuing Credit Facility accounts);
- Change contact details for the owner of the account, including the mailing address for statements, or close the account.

#### Appointing an Authorised Signatory

For you to appoint an authorised signatory you need to:

- Read these terms and conditions and related brochures;
- Complete the application form;
- Both you and the authorised signatory read and sign the declaration on the application form;
- Give the completed and signed application form to us;
- Give us your authorised signatory's identification documents to satisfy the legal requirements we may have to comply with.

You are liable to pay for (or to repay) any credit provided to any person authorised to operate on your account(s). Your account(s) will be debited with all transactions made on your account by a person authorised to operate on your account(s). Accordingly, you are responsible for all these transactions as if you had made them yourself.

#### Terminating the appointment of your authorised signatory

An Authority to Operate will operate until we receive written notice of cancellation or notice of death of the person granting the authority and that notice has been processed by us. Notice of cancellation must be signed by all surviving account holders. We may require a new Authority to Operate before we allow further operation on the account.

If there is a dispute notified to us about an Authority to Operate or the owner of an account, we may refuse to allow operation of the account until all parties concerned have signed the necessary authority. We are not liable for any loss or damage caused by any delay in processing a cancellation of an Authority to Operate.

Any cards issued as an additional card holder should be returned for cancellation or written instruction by you to cancel the card. You must arrange to cancel all regular payment arrangements and standing authorities with merchants operating on the additional card. Failure to do this could result in your liability for any use.

#### 5.2 JOINT ACCOUNTS

#### General

If you open a joint account:

- The credit balance of a joint account is held jointly by all account holders;
- Each account holder has the right to all of the balance, jointly with the other account holders;
- A joint account holder may only make a withdrawal on the terms of any authority to operate on the account;
- If there is any dispute between joint account holders, we may decide to only permit operation on the account when all parties have signed the necessary authority;
- If a joint account holder dies, the remaining account holder holds the credit balance and if more than one, those remaining account holders hold the credit balance jointly;
- Each joint account holder is liable for the whole of any debit balance on the account;
- We can sue all or any account holder(s) for an amount owing on the account.

#### **Reduced Fees Program**

The first named Member in a joint account application will be the primary joint account holder. Every other Member in the joint account will be a secondary joint account holder.

The Reduced Fees Program are assessed on a calendar monthly basis. Individual and primary joint account holders qualify for the Reduced Fees Program where the combined balances of all savings, investments and drawn loans within the one membership only are kept over \$5,000 for the whole calendar

month. Secondary joint account holders qualify for the Reduced Fees Program for transactions on the joint S1 account or where the combined balances of any of your individual accounts are kept over \$5,000 for the whole calendar month.

Transactions conducted using the Visa Credit Card do not count towards the Reduced Fees Program. The Reduced Fees Program do not apply to fees for ATM balance inquiries, Visa Cash advances, overseas ATM withdrawals or any drawn loan balance from a Police Bank AMS securitised mortgage, Equity Maximiser Loans, Leasing account, Online SuperSaver balance, Police Value Home Loans or Customs Value Home Loans approved before 1st July 2011. For more information about the Reduced Fees Program, please see our Schedule of Fees & Charges.

#### How to open a Joint Account

Where you wish to open an account with us, together with another Member or Members, you will need to:

- Ensure that everyone who is to be an account holder in the joint account is a Member of the Bank;
- Where anyone is not a Member, then that person will need to complete a Membership application form before you may proceed to open a joint account;
- Read and have the other Members read these Terms and Conditions and the related brochures;
- Choose who is to be the primary joint account holder. All other joint account holders are secondary joint account holders. You need to choose carefully as the balance of your joint account benefits only the primary joint account holder when we determine the Reduced Fees Program;
- Complete the application form;
- Consider when completing the application form the operational status of the joint account i.e., if all of you need to sign our transaction documents, or that one of two or more signatures only are required. Please note that if you require more than one signature on a joint account transaction document, then we will not be able to provide you with some of our products e.g., Visa Card, Redicard, Redidial;
- Read and sign and have the other Members read and sign the Declaration on the application form;
- Submit the completed and signed application form to us;
- If you or the other Members have not already done so, give us your or the other Members' identification documents to satisfy the legal requirements we may have to comply with;
- If you or the other Members have not already done so, give us your or the other Members' tax file number, if you or the other Members do not want us to deduct withholding tax from any interest earned on what you or the other Members have deposited in the joint account;

Select any of the account products.

#### **Operational Status of Joint Accounts**

When you open your joint account, you choose the operational status for that account, such as:

- Only one person is required to sign our transaction documents;
- If there are more than two joint account holders, a minimum number of persons required to sign our transaction documents;
- All joint account holders are required to sign our transaction documents.

Any changes to the operational status of a joint account are subject to limitations, which arise due to certain account products you hold with the joint account. For example, we are not able to change the operational status where in a joint account there are several cards issued, until the cards are returned to us, or they become non-operational through written confirmation from our card operator that no transactions can be carried out on those cards.

#### **Online SuperSaver Accounts**

You must apply on-line for this account. For joint Memberships, any individual joint Member can accept the terms and conditions on behalf of all joint Members. Once the "I/We accept" button is clicked in the internet banking system, the FSG is binding on all joint Members.

#### Changes to your Account Details

For any change you will need to complete the Membership and Product Application form or the Change of Personal Details form. On receipt of the completed form we will check our records and clarify the current operational status of the joint account, and amend the account(s) accordingly.

#### 5.3 MAKING DEPOSITS

#### Depositing into an Account - Means of depositing with us

You may deposit money with us in these ways:

- Over the counter at one of our Service Centres;
- By post to one of our Service Centres;
- Bank@Post (see below);
- By a payment service/direct credit;
- By Internet Banking transfer to your account;
- By Telephone Banking transfer to your account through Redidial;
- Through an ATM which accepts deposits to us.

#### Visit our Service Centre

When you (or someone on your behalf) visit a Service Centre to transact we will need to see identification. When the transaction has been completed, a receipt will be issued.

#### Deposit by post

We recommend that you use the option to send us a deposit by post as a last resort, where the other options are not available to you.

We are only responsible for the deposit when it has been received by us.

We further recommend the post option chosen by you should be one where Australia Post can confirm we have received your letter and deposit.

We recommend that you should check with us after putting the deposit in the post to confirm that we have received and processed your deposit.

You must never send cash through the post, and only send crossed cheques/money orders of small amounts in the post to us.

If you do not have one of our deposit slips, then we will need, in addition to your cheque/money order, a letter in clear and precise terms instructing us where to deposit your cheque/ money order. Without the deposit slip or letter, we will not be able to process your deposit.

We do not send you a receipt for the deposit by post and the first document you will receive from us acknowledging your deposit will be the next statement we issue to you after that deposit.

#### Deposit Using Bank@Post

Make deposits into your S1 account using Bank@Post, a service available at over 3,300 Australian Post Branches. A daily deposit limit of \$200,000 applies. Cheques made out in joint names will not be accepted for deposit through Bank@Post.

#### Direct Credit

This is an arrangement with a direct credit supplier, who deposits money into your account with us by electronic transfer.

We do not have control over that deposit and we do not provide a receipt, when the deposit has been made by the direct credit supplier.

We recommend that you check with us to confirm the direct credit supplier has made the deposit to your account when anticipated by you.

If the deposit has not been made, you will need to talk to the direct credit supplier.

The first document you will receive from us acknowledging the direct credit supplier's deposit will be the next statement we issue to you after that deposit.

#### Internet Banking deposit

We normally issue you with an electronic receipt for the transaction.

We advise you that special Terms and Conditions apply to your Internet Banking, so we recommend you visit our website www.policebank.com.au (for Customs Bank details refer to back page) and become familiar with those Terms and Conditions and our Internet Banking procedures.

#### **Unintended Recipient**

Where it is established that a credit transfer has been processed to your account, and we are notified that a mistaken payment has been made to your account, we may freeze the amount in question until we are satisfied that there has been no error.

#### **Redidial deposit**

When you have access to your account(s) through our Telephone Banking service, Redidial, it is possible for you to transfer money between your accounts within the same Membership with us using Redidial.

We normally issue you with an electronic receipt for the transaction.

We advise you that Access Methods Terms and Conditions apply to your Telephone Banking through Redidial. We recommend that if you do not have those Terms and Conditions, please call us on 131 728 and have us send you a copy.

#### ATM deposit

Where there is an Automatic Teller Machine (ATM) which accepts deposits to your S1 account, you may complete a deposit package and complete the deposit in accordance with the directions from the ATM.

We recommend that you should check with us after putting the deposit into the ATM to confirm that we have received and processed your deposit.

We do not send you a receipt for the ATM deposit. The first document you receive from us acknowledging your deposit will be the next statement we issue to you after that deposit.

#### Types of Deposits and their Availability to You

There are three ways to deposit money with us:

- Cash;
- Cheque;
- Electronic transfer.

#### Cash

When you deposit cash in your account with us at one of our Service Centres, that deposit is available for withdrawal immediately after we have processed that deposit.

#### Cheque - Australian Cheques

When you deposit money in your account with us by way of cheque, then prior to us accepting the cheque we will need to:

- Check that you are the payee nominated in the cheque.
- If you are not the payee nominated in the cheque, then we will need to review the cheque and determine whether or not we will accept the cheque for deposit of the amount stated in that cheque into your account with us.

We will have one of our Managers look at any assignment of the cheque from the nominated payee to you and in that situation, we will need to be satisfied that:

- The cheque is capable of being assigned, that is, it must be an 'or bearer' cheque;
- The nominated payee has actually signed the assignment on the cheque. If we are not satisfied with the assignment of the cheque, then we will not accept the cheque for deposit of the amount stated in that cheque into your account with us;
- The cheque has been properly dated and signed;
- That the amount stated in the cheque is the same in words and numbers;
- We will not accept post dated cheques (i.e. a cheque dated after the date it is deposited); or stale cheques (i.e. a cheque that is more than 12 months old on the date it is deposited);
- If we are not satisfied with any aspect of how the cheque has been completed, then we will not accept the cheque for deposit of the amount stated in that cheque into your account with us.

Where we are not satisfied we will return the cheque to you with a recommendation that you take it back to the drawer or assignor of the cheque.

Where we are satisfied with the cheque, we will:

- Note the deposit of the cheque with us in your account;
- Note in your account that the proceeds of the cheque is not available until the cheque has cleared, which for other than ATM deposits, is normally for 4 working days after the date of initial deposit of the cheque with us. For ATM deposits cheques are not cleared for a period of 8 days after deposit at the ATM;
- Advise you that the amount stated in the cheque will not be available for withdrawal until the cheque has cleared and that the clearance time is normally 4 working days after the date of the initial deposit of the cheque with us. Cheques deposited via Bank@Post will be cleared after 7 working days;
- When the cheque has cleared, we will remove the restriction on withdrawal of the amount stated in the cheque from your account. We do not notify you of the

removal of that restriction;

Where the cheque is not cleared and we are told that the amount stated in the cheque will not be paid to us, we will show that cheque as dishonoured in your account. We will then notify you that the cheque has been dishonoured and recommend that you talk to the drawer, or assignor of the cheque.

When a cheque is dishonoured we charge a fee for that dishonour and that fee is debited from the account the cheque was deposited into. We refer you to our Schedule of Fees and Charges for the amount of the fee.

When we refer to a cheque being cleared we mean that:

- The cheque you have provided to us has been processed through the banking system;
- The amount stated in that cheque has been provided to us by the bank named in that cheque;
- We have paid that amount to your account, which enables us to remove the restriction on you withdrawing part or all of that amount.

#### **Overseas Cheques**

The procedure for processing Australian cheques applies subject to the following variations:

- We consult our bank whether they will accept the cheque and provide a currency conversion or require the cheque be processed through the international banking system before currency conversion;
- If our bank accepts the cheque when presented by us, they will convert the cheque to Australian currency. Subject to clearance of the cheque we then deposit that amount of Australian currency to your account. If the cheque is dishonoured and there has been a variation in the currency conversion rate, you will be liable for any loss incurred by us and our bank due to that variation and any dishonour fee associated with the cheque;
- If our bank does not accept the cheque when presented by us, they will have the cheque processed through the international banking system. When the cheque has been cleared, our bank will receive the value on the cheque, convert that value to Australian currency and we then credit your account with the amount in Australian currency.

The minimum clearance times for overseas cheques are:

- Where the cheque is accepted by our bank, 42 days;
- Where the cheque is not accepted by our bank, the time varies depending upon a number of factors, including the country of the bank the cheque is drawn on.

#### Electronic Transfer

You may deposit money into your account with us by electronic means, for example through our Internet Banking system.

Where you have carried out an electronic transfer into your account, the funds from that transfer are available for withdrawal as soon as the transaction has been completed through the electronic banking system.

As we do not have control over other financial institutions, we are not able to advise you of the time it will take to complete the electronic transfer.

We recommend that you check your account after the electronic transfer to confirm the completion of the transaction and the availability of the funds from that electronic transfer for any other purpose you may have.

#### 5.4 MAKING WITHDRAWALS

There are three main ways to withdraw money from us:

- Cash;
- Cheque;
- Electronic transfer (see 'Making Payments').

#### Cash

When you have money available in your account, you may come to one of our Service Centres and withdraw:

- Up to \$2,000 in cash per day;
- Over \$2,000 by prior arrangement;
- Maximum \$50,000;
- Amounts over \$25,000 incur a cash handling fee (see Schedule of Fees and Charges brochure).

When withdrawing cash from an ATM and EFTPOS, withdrawal limits may apply and you will ordinarily only be able to withdraw \$1,000 a day.

When you (or an authorised signatory) visit a Service Centre to transact we will need to see identification. When the transaction has been completed, a receipt will be issued.

#### Cheque

There are two types of cheques:

- Your own cheque where you have a chequing facility with us;
- Our counter cheques.

#### Your Cheque

With your own cheque, you must ensure that there is sufficient money in your S1 account to meet the cheque when it is presented to us for payment by the Financial Institution of the person to whom you wrote the cheque.

When you write out a cheque, you need to ensure:

- You have completed the payee and amount details correctly;
- You have dated the cheque (if you date it in the future, the payee is unable to bank it until that time);

- You have elected the negotiable limitation on the cheque and marked the cheque correctly;
- Whether the cheque is to be a "bearer" cheque or not. If not you need to delete the word on the cheque;
- Whether the cheque is to be an "account payee only" cheque or not. If so, you need to add those words after the name of the payee;
- Whether you want the cheque only to be negotiated through a financial institution. If so, cross the cheque with two diagonal lines and write inside those lines the words "not negotiable";
- Whether the cheque is to be open and negotiable by the holder of the cheque. If so, leave "bearer" on the cheque and do not cross it.

You need to be careful with your choice as to the negotiable limitation of the cheque. If you wish to pay a particular person or company by your own cheque, it is normally better to limit the negotiability of the cheque by making the cheque "account payee only" and crossing it and marking it "not negotiable".

If you are not careful the cheque may be used for a purpose contrary to your original intention, which may result in you losing money.

We are not responsible to you if you do not properly complete a cheque, your cheque is negotiated and then paid by us in accordance with how you had completed the cheque.

When you pay by your "account payee only - not negotiable" cheque:

- You complete the cheque and hand it to the payee;
- The payee deposits it with their Financial Institution;
- The payee Financial Institution calls on us to pay your cheque;
- We pay the payee's Financial Institution the amount set out in your cheque providing there are sufficient funds to meet that cheque in your account.

We advise you that Access Methods Terms and Conditions apply to your member chequing facility. We recommend that if you do not have those Terms and Conditions, call us on 131 728 and have us send you a copy.

#### Stop Payment - Member Cheques

It is only possible to stop payment on your cheque up to the time it is presented to us for payment.

If you want to stop payment on a cheque you have drawn, you need to:

- Telephone us on 131 728 and notify us of all the details;
- Send us a written request to stop payment on the cheque, setting out all the details of the cheque.

Your telephone direction will alert us to look out for the cheque but we are unable to process a stop payment without a written

direction from you.

Providing we receive your written direction prior to the cheque being presented to us for payment and us paying on that cheque, then we will stop payment.

You will be responsible to the payee for the stop payment.

We will not be responsible to you if your direction arrives after we have paid on the cheque as presented to us.

#### Insufficient Funds - Cheques

If you do not have enough money in your S1 account and/or credit in your Credit Overdraft when you use a cheque to pay for any goods or services, then in the absence of you making an arrangement with us either:

- We will dishonour the cheque which means we will not pay the amount stated in the cheque to your payee's financial institution. The person or company who you paid by cheque are therefore still owed the amount. There is also a fee for the dishonour of a cheque and that fee will be debited to your S1 account;
- We will pay the amount stated in the cheque and we will exercise our right to combine accounts and use money in another of your accounts to pay the amount.

The choice is ours and we will not be responsible to you for any loss you incur if we choose to dishonour your cheque due to you not having enough money in your S1 account and/or credit in your Credit Overdraft.

You should ensure that before you complete a cheque and provide it to a person or company for payment of a good or service that you have sufficient money in your S1 account and/or Credit Overdraft to meet that cheque.

#### **Corporate Cheques**

You can also withdraw funds by the way of corporate cheque. We make out the cheque to a third party nominated by you. We may charge you a fee for a corporate cheque. Refer to our Schedule of Fees & Charges for details.

#### Counter Cheque Withdrawals - Stop Payment

It is only possible to stop payment on a corporate cheque up to the time it is presented to us for payment.

If you want to stop payment on a cheque you need to:

- Telephone us on 131 728 and notify us of all the details;
- Send us a written request to stop payment on the cheque, setting out all the details of the cheque;
- Provide written consent from the cheque payee.

Your telephone direction will alert us to look out for the cheque but we are unable to process a stop payment without a written direction from you.

We will forward a form to you for completion. You must complete the form before the stop payment can be processed. You will be responsible to the payee for the stop payment. We will not be responsible to you if your direction arrives after we have paid on the cheque as presented to us.

#### Withdrawing or Transferring funds from an Account

You may withdraw money you have with us in these ways:

- By visiting one of our Service Centres;
- By Bank@Post;
- By post to one of our Service Centres;
- By email or facsimile direction to one of our Service Centres;
- Through an ATM which accepts our cards;
- By a payment service;
- By Internet Banking or Pay Anyone transfer from your account;
- By Telephone Banking transfer from one account to another account in your Membership through Redidial;
- By BPAY transfer from your account.

#### Visit to our Service Centre

When you (or an authorised signatory) visit us at a Service Centre, you may need to complete a withdrawal form and we will need to see identification. When the transaction has been completed, a receipt will be issued.

Your withdrawal may be refused, if you:

- Are withdrawing a large amount from your account;
- Do not have photo identification; or
- We are not satisfied with the photo identification provided.

Normally, we require you to personally attend if there is to be a withdrawal from your account at one of our Service Centres.

If you are not able to personally attend, it is possible for you to authorise a person to attend one of our Service Centres with a completed withdrawal form but if you are not personally attending then:

- We need to see identification documents for you and your authorised person;
- We will retrieve a copy of your signature to confirm that the signature on the withdrawal form is your signature;
- We may telephone you to confirm the withdrawal, before we proceed and if we are not satisfied with the withdrawal form, the identification documents or we are unable to call you, then we will not process the withdrawal.

You should ensure you are available for us to call you if we need to when your withdrawal form is presented by your authorised person to one of our Service Centres.

#### Withdrawal using Bank@Post

Withdraw up to \$1,000 per day from your S1, S11, S28 or S14

account using the Bank@Post service available at over 3,300 Australia Post branches. Refer to our Schedule of Fees & Charges for details.

#### Funds transfer by post, facsimile or email direction

If you want to transfer funds from your account by post, facsimile or email direction, you need to send us a document that has the following:

- Your name, Membership and account numbers;
- The amount you wish to withdraw;
- The BSB, account number and account name to whom the amount is to be paid;
- Your signature.

To protect your funds, we will contact you by phone to confirm the transaction in order to verify the authenticity of your requested transfer.

A fee may be charged for the transaction, in accordance with the 'Schedule of Fees and Charges'.

#### ATM/EFTPOS withdrawal

Where there is an Automatic Teller Machine (ATM) or Electronic Funds Transfer Point of Sale facility (EFTPOS) which accepts your Visa Card or Redicard, you may use the machine to withdraw from your S1, S11, S14 or S28 account with us. A daily limit of \$1000 applies per card.

You will normally have an option as to whether or not you want to receive an acknowledgement of the withdrawal from the ATM.

We do not send an acknowledgement for the withdrawal.

The first document you receive from us acknowledging your ATM withdrawal will be the next statement we issue to you after that withdrawal.

#### 5.5 MAKING PAYMENTS

Our Payment Facilities are not available to all Members. Payment Facilities are not available to accounts where more than one signature is required to operate the account, unless all signatories have signed the application form. Payment facilities are not available to all children:

- Not available to children under 12;
- Parental consent required for children between 12 and up to 16.

If you have any questions about Payment Facilities please telephone us on 131 728 and talk to a Member Services Officer.

#### **Payment Services**

This is an arrangement where at your direction a sum of money is transferred from your account to a third party. There are four forms of withdrawal payment service:

 Periodical payment – instruction for the Bank to send funds on your behalf on a regular basis;

- Direct transfer instruction for the Bank to send funds on your behalf on request;
- Direct debit third party draws against a savings account on a regular basis (i.e. you have provided our BSB and your account number details);
- Regular payments third party draws against a visa card linked to an account on a regular basis (i.e. you have provided your visa card details).

We have control over the periodical payment and direct transfer. We do not control the direct debit or regular payment as it is lodged with the third party and that third party manages the withdrawal from your account.

We recommend that you check to confirm with us and the third party, the periodical payment, direct transfer, direct debit or regular payment has been processed.

We do not issue you with any written confirmation of a periodical payment, direct transfer, regular payment or direct debit.

The first document acknowledging the periodical payment, direct transfer, direct debit or regular payment will be the next statement we issue to you after that periodical payment, direct transfer or direct debit.

**Payment Order** - If you request more than one periodical payment, direct debit or regular payment, we will determine the order in which they are paid.

**Stop Payments** - To stop or alter a periodical payment, direct debit or regular payment, you must provide either written instructions, phone us or visit a Service Centre. We will require full details of the periodical payment, direct debit or regular payment at least (3) business days before the next payment is to be made.

Care: if you have multiple payments / policies with the supplier, then an instruction to cancel the payment by the Bank will cancel all payments made to that supplier (e.g.) Car insurance, home insurance and contents – so it may be more effective to cancel the single policy with the supplier.

You must also instruct any direct debit or regular payment supplier to stop the payment without delay.

Note: Cancellation of a direct debit or regular payment does not cancel any contract arrangement between you and the supplier.

Future Dated Electronic Transactions - Future dated electronic transactions will be processed on the closest working day prior to the weekend or public holiday. Electronic transactions conducted on a weekend or public holiday will be processed on the closest working day after the weekend or public holiday.

You must also instruct any direct debit or regular payment supplier to stop the payment without delay.

**Insufficient Funds** - should there be insufficient funds to meet your Periodic Payment due date, the Bank will attempt to make the payment for the next 4 consecutive business days. If there

are still insufficient funds, the payment will reject. That is - the payment will not be made.

Should the payment be rejected on 4 separate occasions, the Payment Authority will automatically cancel.

Missed Payments and Cancellation - We may decide not to make a periodical payment or direct debit if there are not sufficient cleared funds in the account at the time and on the date for the transfer of money. From time to time we may allow you to overdraw your account(s). We have no obligation to do so. If we decide to make a payment because there are not enough cleared funds in an account, or if we decide to make a payment and overdraw the account, we may charge a fee. Please refer to our Schedule of Fees & Charges Brochure.

#### Internet Banking transfer

When you have access to your account(s) through our Internet Banking service it is possible for you to transfer money between your own Bank accounts and externally to other financial institutions.

We normally issue you with an electronic acknowledgement for the transaction. The first document you will receive from us receipting your transaction will be the next statement we issue to you after the transaction.

We advise you that separate Terms and Conditions apply to your Internet Banking, so we recommend you visit our website www.policebank.com.au (for Customs Bank details refer to back page) and become familiar with those Terms and Conditions and our Internet Banking procedure.

#### Redidial transfer

When you have access to your account(s) through our Telephone Banking service, Redidial, it is possible for you to transfer money between your accounts (within the same Membership) with us using your phone and Redidial.

We normally issue you with an electronic acknowledgement for the transaction. The first document you will receive from us receipting your transaction will be the next statement we issue to you after the Redidial transaction.

We advise you that separate Terms and Conditions apply to your Telephone Banking through Redidial, so we recommend that if you do not have those Terms and Conditions, call us on 131 728 and have us send you a copy.

#### BPAY

This is where you are able to arrange for a withdrawal from your account with us to directly pay bills.

Your ability to pay your bill through BPAY depends on whether or not the party whose bill you are paying is on the BPAY system.

Unless you are completing a BPAY transaction through Internet Banking or Redidial where an electronic acknowledgement for the transaction will issue to you, we do not send you a receipt for a BPAY transaction. The first document you will receive from us receipting your transaction will be the next statement we issue to you after the BPAY transaction.

#### **Electronic Transactions**

#### Insufficient Funds

The main forms of electronic transactions from your account are:

- ATM;
- EFTPOS;
- Payment services;
- Internet Banking;
- Redidial Telephone Banking;
- BPAY;
- Bank@Post.

If you do not have enough money in your S1 account and/ or credit in your Credit Facility when you try to transact electronically to pay for a good or service, then in the absence of you making an arrangement with us either:

- We will not process the electronic transaction, which means we will not pay the amount stated in the electronic transfer to your payee's bank. The person or company who you paid by electronic transfer are therefore still owed the amount;
- We will pay the amount stated in the electronic transaction but your account and/or Credit Facility will be overdrawn and either we will exercise our right to combine accounts and use money in another of your accounts to pay the overdrawn amount; or your account will be referred to our Collections Department to recover the overdrawn amount.

The choice is ours and we will not be responsible to you for any loss you incur if we choose to not process the electronic transfer due to you not having enough money in your account and/or credit in your Credit Facility.

You should ensure that you have sufficient money in your account and/or credit in your Credit Facility before you try to do an electronic transfer.

#### 5.6 PAYMENT ORDER TO LOANS

Where your payment order (Payroll Deduction or Periodic Payment Authority) is to make payments to a nominated loan account held with the Bank, the amount deducted by us from your payroll or from your nominated deposit account will be adjusted to ensure that it is sufficient to meet the minimum repayment required under each loan contract.

#### 5.7 ABOUT YOUR ACCOUNTS - OVERDRAWING, ACCOUNT STATEMENTS, PAYMENT AUTHORITY/ ACCOUNT COMBINATION AND ACCOUNT CLOSURE

#### **Overdrawing your Account**

We do not agree to provide any credit in relation to your account.

You agree not to overdraw your account unless you have an Overdraft. You may apply for an Overdraft on your S1 Account which will be subject to the Terms and Conditions of an Overdraft credit contract. We may, at our discretion, honour a cheque, periodical payment, direct debit, Visa or other transaction. If your account becomes overdrawn for any reason, immediate repayment is required. We may charge you a fee and interest on the overdrawn amount at our overdraft interest rate as well as any reasonable legal fees we incur in obtaining the amount from you.

#### Statements of Account

We will send you statements outlining the transactions on your accounts at regular intervals.

Your statement will include the following information:

- Your Member number;
- Accounts within your Membership;
- Owners of the accounts;
- All debit and credit transactions on your accounts, including all payment service transactions, Internet Banking and Redidial transactions;
- The opening and closing balances for your accounts (the balances at the start and end of the statement period), and all the changes to the balances in your accounts between the opening and closing balances, which record the impact of your debit and credit transactions on your accounts.

You should always check your statements when you receive them from us to:

- Confirm the opening balances on your accounts are the same as the closing balances on your last statement;
- Check all the transactions on your accounts are correct.

If you do not agree with any details on a statement, you need to call us on 131 728 and talk to one of our Member Services Officers.

If you are a joint account holder living at the same address as another joint account holder of the same account, we will only send one statement of account to that address. If joint account holders live at different addresses notified to us, on request we will send a statement to up to 2 different addresses.

Depending upon what types of accounts you have with us, we will set out the frequency of the statements. At a minimum we will send you four statements a year.

If you have a Continuing Credit Contract, cheque book or Visa Credit Card with us, then you will receive statements every month. It is possible to have us provide you with statements more often than you may be currently receiving them.

If you want more frequent statements, then call us on 131 728 and speak to one of our Member Services Officers.

If you feel we have missed sending you a statement or you need a copy of a statement we have already sent you, then call us on 131 728 and speak to one of our Member Services Officers.

Fees and charges may apply for additional statements. Please read our Schedule of Fees and Charges.

If your statement is returned to us as "returned mail" we reserve the right to not forward statements to you until a new address is provided.

#### Payment Authority / Account Combination

You authorise us to debit any of your Bank savings accounts to meet a payment due on any accounts whether the payments is owed to the Bank or another party. We will make every effort to complete payments for you but we have no obligation to do so.

We may also combine accounts when you owe us a sum of money after you overdraw an account or fail to remedy a default under a credit contract (e.g. loan or overdraft). In these circumstances, we are entitled to immediate repayment of the debt. We will combine accounts by withdrawing an amount from any account with a credit balance sufficient to pay the amount you owe us.

If you have any questions about payment authorities or combining accounts, call us on 131 728 and speak to one of our Collections Officers.

#### Account Closure

You are entitled at any time to close your account and/or apply to terminate your Membership with us. We may close any of your savings accounts even though the account may have a credit balance. We will give you reasonable notice before doing so and will repay any credit balance. Any Redicard, Visa Card or other access instrument authorised for use on your accounts must be returned to us unless it is authorised for use on another person's account.

#### General

If you wish to close an account or terminate a Membership, then you will need to:

- Contact us and obtain the account closure form;
- Complete and sign the form and return it to us;
- If you are closing an account, provide us with sufficient funds to bring the account to zero if that account is overdrawn or subject to a Credit Overdraft;
- If you are terminating your Membership, provide us with sufficient funds to bring all your savings accounts to zero and repay in full all loans you have with us;
- Return all access/credit cards and unused cheques.

On receipt of these items, we will then process your application.

#### Special Circumstances

In the event of a death or family law settlement, accounts need to be closed and money in those accounts transferred to new accounts, you will need to:

- Notify us in writing and provide us with appropriate documents i.e. Death Certificate, Will, Grant of Probate, Family Law Agreement or Orders, to confirm your position to deal with a Membership and/or account;
- When you do not hold a Membership and account in your own name complete all the documentation required to become a Member and open an account;
- Provide us with written instructions on what we are to do with the money held in the account to be closed.

On receipt of your documents, we will:

- Close the account and terminate the Membership;
- Where necessary, open a new Membership and account;
- Transfer the money from the closed account to the new account, or if no new account is to be opened provide you with a cheque in favour of the party directed by you.

We follow this procedure, as it is not possible to transfer Memberships. We therefore must close a Membership and, where appropriate, open a new Membership and account, and then transfer the money from the account in the closed Membership to the account in the new Membership.

#### 5.8 EDVEST AND REDUCED FEES PROGRAM

#### Edvest

We have a service for Members over the age of 45 years.

This service provides a number of benefits and we refer you to:

- The Product Profiles (page 10) which set out the Edvest accounts;
- Our Edvest brochure, which sets out the other benefits available to our Edvest Members.

For you to become an Edvest Member you will need to:

 Complete the Membership steps using our Membership/ Product Application forms.

We will process your application in the same way we process a standard Membership and account application, except that our records will disclose that you are an Edvest Member.

If you have any queries about Edvest, call us on 131 728 and speak to one of our Member Services Officers.

#### **Reduced Fees Program**

The Reduced Fees Program rewards you for doing business with the Bank. The program gives you more fee free personal cheques, ATM and EFTPOS transactions than would normally apply to our Member's accounts. The Reduced Fees Program are assessed on a calendar monthly basis.

Individual and primary joint account holders qualify for the Reduced Fees Program where the combined balances of all savings, investments and drawn loans within the one membership only are kept over \$5,000 for the whole calendar month. Secondary joint account holders qualify for the Reduced Fees Program for transactions on the joint S1 account or where the combined balances of any of your individual accounts are kept over \$5,000 for the whole calendar month. Transactions conducted using the Visa Credit Card do not count towards the Reduced Fees Program. The Reduced Fees Program do not apply to fees for ATM balance inquiries, Visa Cash advances, overseas ATM withdrawals or any drawn loan balance from a Police Bank AMS securitised mortgage, Equity Maximiser Loans, Leasing account, Online SuperSaver balance, or Police Value Home Loans or Customs Value Home loans that were approved before 1st July 2011. For more information about the Reduced Fees Program, please see our Schedule of Fees & Charges

If you have any questions about the Reduced Fees Program call us on 131 728 and speak to one of our Member Services Officers.

#### 5.9 CHANGES

#### **Changes to these Terms and Conditions**

We may vary the terms and conditions of our accounts and account products. We will give you at least 20 days written notice if any variation will:

- Impose or increase charges relating to your use of your accounts and account products;
- Increase your liability for losses relating to transactions through your accounts and account products;
- Adjust the transaction limits applying to your use of your accounts and account products.

We will tell you of all other variations in advance by notice in writing to you. Our obligation to give you advance notice does not apply if variations are required in an emergency to restore or maintain our or your security. We fulfil our obligations to give you notice under these Terms and Conditions if we post the notice by ordinary mail to the last address you gave us. For joint accounts we will provide one copy of the notice addressed to the primary joint Member.

#### Changes to your account details

You can change your account details and instructions with us. If you have a change in any of your details, i.e., change of address, change of name, removal of authorised signatories etc., then you need to notify us immediately when the change occurs. If you do not tell us your changes, we will continue to handle your Membership and accounts with us on the basis of the details and instructions we hold and:

- We will send all our mail to you, including statements, notices, magazines and brochures to the name and address on our records;
- We will allow your accounts to be operated by those persons who are on our records as authorised signatories;

 We will comply with all payment service instructions (including periodic payments, direct debits and direct transfers) we have from you.

We are unable to change any of your details or instructions without you first notifying us of the changes in writing. It is very important to notify us immediately of changes in your details and instructions. With respect to changes to authorised signatories, we refer you to the Terms and Conditions on authorised signatories.

# 6. PRIVACY, COMPLAINTS, INFORMATION AND COMPLIANCE

#### Privacy

We have a policy, which deals with the protection of your privacy. We refer you to our Privacy Policy which sets out in detail the terms of how we protect your privacy and the circumstances where we provide your information to others. If you have questions about privacy, call our Privacy Officer on 131 728.

#### Complaints

Refer to page 5 of this guide for information regarding how we manage complaints.

#### More Information

If there is anything you need to know about us that is not in these Terms and Conditions or one of our brochures, then please call us on 131 728 and speak to one of our Member Services Officers who will endeavour to assist you with your inquiry. You can also confirm the opening or closing of any account or payment facility by calling us on 131 728 and requesting written confirmation.

#### **Opening Hours**

Opening hours are published on our website (see back page for details).

Our after-hours reporting service (e.g. stolen cards and electronic transactions and/or access codes) is open outside business hours.

#### Compliance

The Bank is committed to compliance with all laws that affect our products and services including the Customer Owned Banking Code of Practice; National Consumer Credit Protection Act; Competition and Consumer Act; ePayments Code; Australian Privacy Principles; Financial Services Reform Act; and Anti Money Laundering/Counter Terrorism Act. These Terms and Conditions are subject to those laws and codes. We warrant that we will comply with the ePayments Code wherever it applies.

## 7. SPECIFIC TERMS AND CONDITIONS

#### 7.1 SAVINGS ACCOUNTS

**Interest Rate & Calculation** - Any interest you earn will be calculated by applying the daily annual percentage rate to the daily closing balance of your account and paid to your account yearly, twice yearly or quarterly as set out in the Product Profiles (see page 10). The daily annual percentage rate is the annual percentage rate divided by 365 (except for leap years). Please see the Interest Rate Brochure for current rates. No interest is payable on any S26 Mortgage Offset Account (see Mortgage Loan Contract Terms and Conditions).

Withdrawal Restrictions - All accounts are available at call with the exception of S6 and S66, and S15 and S21 accounts on which no withdrawals are allowed for up to 7 days after deposit.

For our S3 Christmas Club account, your funds are available at anytime but on withdrawal of funds from your Christmas Club Account between 1 January and 31 October each year, you will incur a withdrawal fee. Interest is paid once a year to 31 October unless you close your account, when we will pay interest accrued up to the day you close your account.

For our S23 Bonus Saver Account, your funds are available at anytime but if you withdraw your funds in any month you will not be paid bonus interest and the standard interest rate will apply to your account for the month that the withdrawal/s were made in.

Fees and Charges - There are no account keeping fees for these accounts. A dormancy fee applies. There are fees applicable to certain access instruments and payment facilities. There are also charges for corporate cheque withdrawals and excess fees for a number of other types of withdrawal transactions. Please see the Schedule of Fees and Charges for details.

Federal Government Guarantee Scheme - All savings and investments up to \$250,000 with the Bank are government protected.

- The account holder may be entitled to payment under the Financial Claims Scheme; and
- Access to the scheme is subject to a limit for each depositor; and
- Information about the scheme can be obtained from the APRA website at http://www.apra.gov.au and the APRA hotline on 1300 131 060.

#### 7.2 INVESTMENT ACCOUNTS

Interest Rates - The interest rate on your Investment Account will not change during the term of the deposit. If we quote you an interest rate for an Investment Account, the rate may differ if the deposit is not made on the same day.

Interest Calculation - Interest is calculated by applying the daily annual percentage rate to the daily closing balance of

## **Financial Services Guide**

your account. The daily annual percentage rate is the annual percentage rate divided by 365 (except for leap years). We will not change the method of interest calculation or payment during the term of the deposit.

Withdrawal Restrictions - Although you may withdraw your Investment Account funds at any time, you acknowledge that any Investment Account deposit is lodged on the understanding that it is not withdrawn before the maturity date. See Product Profile (page 8) for other restrictions.

**Early Withdrawal Fees/Reduced Interest** - If you withdraw your deposit before the maturity date, we will pay interest at a reduced rate from the date of deposit to the day prior to withdrawal. The reduced rate will be as decided by us from time to time and can be much lower than the rate that would otherwise apply.

Fees and Charges - There are no account keeping fees for these accounts.

**Certificates** - Investment Certificates will be issued for all Investment Accounts on establishment.

Maturity of Investment Account - You have up to 5 working days after the maturity date to provide any changes to the term deposit instructions. Within 14 days after maturity we will provide you with written advice as to the correct applicable interest rate where the original instructions were that the deposit be reinvested. Your deposit will be automatically reinvested for a further term of the same duration, or in the closest matching available product. This will not occur if you have already provided, or intend to provide alternate instructions to us in writing, prior to the maturity date.

#### 7.3 PAYMENT FACILITIES

Payment Facilities / Access Instruments - For these products, separate terms and conditions will be provided to you on application or request:

- Visa Debit Card a debit card you can use for cash withdrawals and EFTPOS transactions\*;
- Redicard a debit card you can use for cash withdrawals and EFTPOS transactions\*;
- Internet Banking giving you internet access to your account information and payment facilities\*;
- Redidial our phone banking service offering access to your account information and payment facilities\*;
- Overdraft a credit facility linked to your savings account\*;
- Cheque Facility giving you the convenience of cheque book payments\*;
- BPAY a facility to organise your bill payments with access to the BPAY payments system\*.
- PayAnyone our facility that allows you to make payments to a mobile number or email address\*.

Fees and Charges - There are fees applicable to certain access instruments and payment facilities. There are also charges for corporate cheque withdrawals and excess fees for a number of other types of withdrawal transactions. Please see the Schedule of Fees and Charges for details.

#### 7.4 FEES AND CHARGES

You authorise us to debit your account with all fees and charges payable in relation to your Savings Accounts, Investment Accounts and Payment Services.

## 8. FINANCIAL HARDSHIP ASSISTANCE

We focus on making sure we lend responsibly, but we understand that your circumstances can change due to factors such as a change in your employment status. We have always attempted to provide mortgage/loan relief options to our Members and will continue to do so. In fact this approach has been part of the way that we do business with our Members since inception of the Bank.

The Bank will always be open to discussing with Members in financial difficulty the best options available. Working with you we can make an assessment of how best to assist you and your family based of your ability to meet the obligations of your loan. This is the high standard of the service we have always applied.

The Bank will work with your authorised representative should you prefer a third party to assist you to work through your financial situation. This may be a family member or language interpreter or more formally - a tax agent, solicitor, power of attorney or a financial counsellor. There is an authority to nominate a representative on the Request for Financial Assistance Form.

Any Member wishing to discuss their current financial circumstances should ring our Contact Centre on 131 728 or your nearest Service Centre.







## **Contact Us**

#### **Police Bank**

Contact Centre Phone: 131 728 E/N: 88899

**Direct** Phone: 131 728 E/N: 88884

**Sydney** Phone: (02) 8268 2500 E/N: 44850

**Parramatta** Phone: (02) 9841 8200 E/N: 44700

**Penrith** Phone: (02) 4720 5000 E/N: 44750

Newcastle Phone: (02) 4908 6200 E/N: 44870

**Canberra** Phone: (02) 6206 7000 E/N: 44860

**Goulburn** Phone: (02) 4827 1000 E/N: 44730

**Gosford** Phone: (02) 4320 0200 E/N: 44880

Wollongong Phone: (02) 4221 9000 E/N: 44830

Narellan Phone: (02) 4640 7000 E/N: 88839

Port Macquarie Phone: (02) 6582 9900 E/N: 44840

Norwest Phone: (02) 8814 3000 E/N: 44790

Email info@policebank.com.au Website www.policebank.com.au

### **Customs Bank**

Contact Centre: 131 728 Canberra Phone: (02) 6243 8900 Mascot Phone: (02) 8335 4200 Melbourne Phone: (03) 9642 1003 Email info@customsbank.com.au Website www.customsbank.com.au

icebar

member owned banking

All details are current as at the date of this FSG. We will publish minor changes on our website. We will update the FSG if there are any significant changes.

customs member owned banking ADT01 FSG V14 01/18

# Schedule of Fees and Charges

Effective date: 21 December 2015





This booklet should be read in conjunction with the Terms and Conditions contained in the Financial Service Guide (FSG) for the Bank products including: Savings Accounts, Investment Accounts, and Payment Services, and the Access Methods Terms and Conditions for Visa Debit Card, Redicard, Internet Banking, BPAY, Redidial and Member Chequing. AFSL/Australian Credit Licence No. 240018. ABN 95 087 650 799.

#### Police Bank Ltd

ABN 95 087 650 799. AFSL/Australian Credit Licence No. 240018 25 Pelican Street, Surry Hills NSW 2010. Customs Bank is a division of Police Bank Ltd. All terms and conditions that apply to Police Bank also apply to Customs Bank.

#### **ABOUT THIS BOOKLET**

This booklet covers the fees and charges that apply to the Bank's:

- Savings Accounts
- Term Deposits
- Payment Services
- Loans/Continuing Credit

Fees and charges relating to the Equity Maximiser Loan are contained in the "Schedule of Fees and Charges Equity Maximiser" booklet. Additional information on fees and charges for business loans or securitised mortgages is available on application.

The fees and charges listed in this booklet are current from

- 21 December 2015. This booklet provides notification of:
- the introduction of any fees applicable to any loan or overdraft that did not originally disclose those fees (if they have not been introduced by a previous notice)
- (2) Changes to existing fees and charges.

Interest rates are detailed in our separate "Interest Rates" brochure. Terms and Conditions for loan/credit products and other services are available on application.

The credit related fees listed in this booklet may not apply to all contracts entered into with the Bank. If you apply for credit, all fees applicable to your loan or credit facility will be disclosed in your credit contract.

#### INVESTMENT ACCOUNTS

There are no fees or charges payable.

However, if you redeem a term deposit prior to the end of its term the interest rate will be reduced from the rate we agreed to pay. The reduced rate will be as decided by us from time to time and can be much lower than the rate that would otherwise apply. This applies to all Members.

#### **TRANSACTION FEES**

Any transaction charges in excess of any monthly allowances benefit will be debited to your account on the last day of the month in which the fees were incurred.

## PAYMENT SERVICES

		Amount	With Reduced Fees Program*	Without Reduced Fees Program*	Edvest
Account Transfers by email or Facsimile (excluding S12	Per transfer between your accounts within the same Membership	\$3.00	\$3.00	\$3.00	\$3.00
accounts)	Per transfer to another Member's account.	\$1.50	\$1.50	\$1.50	\$1.50
Periodical Payments via Cheque Fee	Per cheque.	\$3.00	\$3.00	\$3.00	Free
External Electronic Periodical Payments Fee	Per transaction that you request Police Bank staff to set up on your behalf.	\$1.00	First 3 Free	\$1.00	Free
Direct Debit Dishonour Fee	Per transaction.	\$9.00	\$9.00	\$9.00	\$9.00
Counter Cheque Withdrawal Fee (excluding S12 accounts)	Per cheque.	\$3.00	\$3.00	\$3.00	Free
- Cash Passport - Foreign Cash	We receive commission equal to 1% of the value issued to you inclusive of GST (\$10 minimum).	-	-	-	-
Western Union Money in Minutes	A fee is calculated for each money transfer service, based on the amount of money to be transferred and the destination country.	At Cost	At Cost	At Cost	At Cost
Draft	Per draft.	\$15.00	\$15.00	\$15.00	\$15.00
Telegraphic Transfer	Per telegraphic transfer (Foreign Currency).	\$30.00	\$30.00	\$30.00	\$30.00
International Inward Funds	Per telegraphic transfer (Australian Dollars). Per telegraphic transfer (TT) for credit to a	\$50.00 \$10.00	\$50.00 \$10.00	\$50.00 \$10.00	\$50.00 \$10.00
	members account. Please note that TT's are sent via a network of correspondent banks, which sometimes levy a small handling charge on your payment. Any such fees, and payments delays, are out of our control.				
International Cheque Deposits	Per cheque	\$10.00	\$10.00	\$10.00	\$10.00
Counter Cash Withdrawal Fee	Per cash withdrawal \$0.00 to \$24,999 Per cash withdrawal \$25,000 or over	\$2.00 \$50.00	First 3 Free \$50.00	\$2.00 \$50.00	\$2.00 \$50.00
Bank@Post Cash Withdrawal Fee	Per transaction. This is inclusive of the following: ■ Bank@Post cash withdrawal ■ Declined Bank@Post transactions Including: ■ Incorrect PIN entered ■ Insufficient funds ■ Exceeding withdrawal limits	\$2.00	\$2.00	\$2.00	\$2.00
Online SuperSaver Account Transaction Fee	Per transaction payable for any operator assisted transaction on your account.	\$5.00	\$5.00	\$5.00	\$5.00
<b>PAYMENT SERVICES - C</b>	HEQUE DEPOSIT FEES				
		Amount	With Reduced Fees Program*	Without Reduced Fees Program*	Edvest
Special Cheque Clearance Fee	Personal Accounts. Business Accounts.	\$16.50 \$27.50	\$16.50 \$27.50	\$16.50 \$27.50	\$16.50 \$27.50
Cheque Deposit Collection Fee	Per cheque deposited.	30c	30c	30c	30c
Dishonoured Cheque Fee	Payable if and when a cheque or other payment to your account is dishonoured.	\$9.00	\$9.00	\$9.00	\$9.00
Bank@Post Dishonoured Cheque Fee	This charge is processed and debited directly by Bank@Post. Payable if and when a cheque or other payment deposited at Bank@Post to your account is dishonoured.	At Cost	At Cost	At Cost	At Cost
Bank Cheque	Any costs charged to us from a third party to obtain a bank cheque will be passed on to you.	At Cost	At Cost	At Cost	At Cost
Overseas Dishonoured Cheque Fee	Any costs charged to us from a third party when an overseas cheque dishonours will be passed on to you.	At Cost	At Cost	At Cost	At Cost
Schedule of Fees and Charges	Page 4	Schedule of	Fees and Charges		Page 5

## MEMBER CHEQUING FACILITY FEES

		Amount	With Reduced Fees Program*	Without Reduced Fees Program*
Member Chequing Fee (excluding S12 accounts)	Per cheque (personal or company) which is written and presented.	\$1.00	First 6 Free	\$1.00
Business Cheque Book	Book of 100 cheques.	\$15.00	\$15.00	\$15.00
Dishonoured Member Cheque Fee	Per cheque dishonoured.	\$9.00	\$9.00	\$9.00
Stop Payment Fee	Per cheque stopped and subsequently presented.	\$9.00	\$9.00	\$9.00
Member Cheque Retrieval Fee	Per cheque requested.	\$22.00	\$22.00	\$22.00

## VISA DEBIT/CREDIT CARD AND REDICARD - ATM/EFTPOS TRANSACTION FEES

		Amount	With Reduced Fees Program*	s Without Reduced Fees Program*	Edvest
EFTPOS Transaction Fee	Per transaction. This is inclusive of the following:- Point of sale purchases using Savings (SAV) or Cheque (CHQ) facilities only. For Credit (CR) transactions with withdrawals refer to Visa Cash Advance Fee. Declined Eftpos transactions including:- Incorrect PIN entered Insufficient funds Exceeding withdrawal limits	\$0.55c	Free	First 25 Free	Free
ATM Transaction Fee	Per transaction. ATM transactions are inclusive of the following:- ATM Withdrawals See page 8 for overseas and Visa Credit Card ATM withdrawals.	At cost (Charged by the ATM Owner following your acceptance of their fee at the time of transaction). Visit our website (see back page) for Police and Customs Bank owned ATM locations.	RediATM (includes NAB ATMs) - 10 free transactions per month, excess transactions charged at \$1.37 per transaction each calendar month. Other Institution's ATM - First 4 ATM transactions rebated at up to \$2 per transaction - maximum rebate of up to \$8 per calendar month and credited at the end of the month.	RediATM (includes NAB ATMs) - first 4 transactions free, excess transactions charged at \$1.37 per transaction each calendar month. Other Institution's ATM transactions - at cost	RediATM (includes NAB ATMs) - 10 free transactions per month, excess transactions charged at \$1.37 per transaction each calendar month. Other Institution's ATM - First 4 ATM transactions rebated at up to \$2 per transaction - maximum rebate of up to \$8 per calendar month and credited at the end of the month
ATM Balance Enquiry Fee	Per enquiry.	At Cost (Charged by the ATM Owner following your acceptance of their fee at the time of transaction).	At Cost (Charged by the ATM Owner following your acceptance of their fee at the time of transaction).	At Cost (Charged by the ATM Owner following your acceptance of their fee at the time of transaction).	At Cost (Charged by the ATM Owner following your acceptance of their fee at the time of transaction).

#### VISA DEBIT/CREDIT CARD AND REDICARD FEES (SEE LOANS, REVOLVING CREDIT ACCOUNTS SECTION FOR FURTHER VISA CREDIT CARD FEES)

		Members/Edvest Members
Replacement Card Fee	Payable for any second or subsequent request for the replacement of a Visa or Redicard.	\$10.00
Visa Voucher Request	Payable per Visa voucher requested.	\$16.50
Visa Overseas Emergency Fee	Payable when you request an emergency replacement Visa Card or emergency cash advance overseas.	USD\$175.00
Visa Cash Advance Fee/ ATM Overseas Withdrawals	Visa Cash withdrawal at a merchant using the CR (Credit) facility, another financial institution, or an overseas ATM withdrawal, or any ATM withdrawal from an S14 Visa Credit Card.	\$3.80 each
Visa International Fees	See Visa Card Terms & Conditions for details on Visa International foreign exchange conversion charges and other surcharges.	3%
Merchant Visa Surcharge Fee	Please note merchants can charge a fee when the Member selects 'Visa' or 'Credit' when using a Visa Card to purchase goods or services. The Merchant not the Bank collects this fee.	At Cost

#### **REDUCED FEES PROGRAM**

(NOT APPLICABLE TO S12 ACCOUNTS, VISA CREDIT CARD\*, LEASING, ONLINE SUPERSAVER, EQUITY MAXIMISER ACCOUNTS, MASTERCARD, OR POLICE VALUE HOME LOAN AND CUSTOMS VALUE HOME LOAN APPROVED BEFORE 1 JULY 2011).

		Eligibility
ATM Transactions. Excludes ATM withdrawals conducted overseas.	Refer to Eligibility.	Individual and Primary Joint Account Holders <ul> <li>If a minimum combined drawn loans and/or savings/term deposit</li> </ul>
Member Chequing Fee	First 6 Free. Refer to Eligibility.	balance is equal to \$5000 or greater and is maintained within the same Membership during the calendar month.
EFTPOS Transaction Fee	<ul> <li>Free. Refer to Eligibility.</li> <li>Are free only if goods are purchased.</li> <li>If only a cash advance is obtained, transaction will count towards the number of ATM transactions allowed each month, if you use Savings (SAV) or Cheque (CHQ) facilities.</li> <li>If goods and cash are obtained in the same transaction it will be treated as an EFTPOS transaction, if you use Savings (SAV) or Cheque (CHQ) facilities. If you use Credit (CR) function to do a cash withdrawal, it is not an EFTPOS transaction, refer to Visa Cash Advance Fee.</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Combined drawn loans and/or savings and term deposit balances includes only the portion of the Credit Overdraft Facility that is drawn and excludes AMS loan balances.</li> <li>*Visa Credit Card drawn balances are included however, Visa Credit Card Accounts are not eligible for fee free transactions.</li> <li>Secondary Joint Account Holders Qualify for the Reduced Fees Program for transactions on the joint S1 account or where the combined balances of any of your individual accounts allowed each month are kept over \$5000 for the whole calendar month.</li> <li>Note: If your minimum combined drawn loans and/or savings/term deposit balance is less than \$5000 during any month (see ATM/EFTPOS Transactions table page 6 and Chequing Facility Fees table pages 6 and 7 and Services table page 4 and 5).</li> </ul>
External Electronic Periodical Payment	First 3 Free (excludes BPAY transaction).	
Counter Cash Withdrawals	First 3 Free. Refer to Eligibility.	
Schedule of Fees and Charges	Page 8	Schedule of Fees and Charges Page 9

## S12 CASH MANAGEMENT ACCOUNT

	Benefits
This account is no longer available. This information is for existing S12 account holders only.	<ul> <li>5 free withdrawals per month made up of the following:</li> <li>cash withdrawals</li> <li>Member cheque withdrawals</li> <li>cheque withdrawals</li> <li>debit transfers</li> <li>external electronic periodical payments</li> <li>Each additional withdrawal will be charged at \$1.50 per month.</li> </ul>

#### **SERVICE FEES**

		Members	Edvest Members
Edvest Fee	Payable annually for Membership of the Edvest Service.	N/A	\$29.00
Overdrawn Savings Account Fee	<ul> <li>Payable when any Savings Account is overdrawn by \$75 or more within a calendar month</li> <li>Interest will also be charged at the then current Overdraft interest rate.</li> </ul>	\$15.00	\$15.00
Default Notice Fee	Payable if and when we send you a default notice for an overdrawn account where a default remains unremedied after we have sent you an arrears letter.	\$21.50	\$21.50
Additional Statement Fee	Payable if and when you request an additional statement.	\$5.00 for Archive Retrieval and \$1.50 per page.	\$5.00 for Archive Retrieval and \$1.50 per page.
Document Retrieval Fee	Payable on request for documents to be retrieved.	Minimum \$22.77 per hour retrieval fee and minimum \$30.00 per hour administrative fee.	Minimum \$22.77 per hour retrieval fee and minimum \$30.00 per hour administrative fee.
Passing on of Third Party Costs	Any costs charged to us from a third party will be passed on to you. Information on these costs is available on request.	At Cost.	At Cost.
Coin Handling Fee	Payable whenever coins deposited in a single month reach an accumulated value in excess of \$100.	\$12.00 or 2% of the amount deposited whichever is the greater.	\$12.00 or 2% of the amount deposited whichever is the greater.
Christmas Club Withdrawal Fee	Payable if you withdraw funds from your Christmas Club Account between 1 January and 31 October each year.	\$5.00 per withdrawal.	\$5.00 per withdrawal.
Dormant Accounts Fee	After 3 years an account is classed as dormant if no Member transactions occur. Interest, fees and government charges are not classed as transactions.	\$10.00 per annum	\$10.00 per annum
Security Token Replacement Fee	Payable if you request a replacement Internet Banking Security Token. (note: first token issued free of charge)	\$20.00	\$20.00

Transactions and service fees may also be debited to your account as set out in this schedule.

## LOANS/REVOLVING CREDIT ACCOUNTS

Fee	Description	Amount
Personal and Car Loan Establishment Fee ■ New Applications ■ Top-Ups	Payable when your loan or top-up is funded.	\$98 per application
Overdraft Limit Establishment Fee	A fee will be debited to your overdraft when your account is opened and when any future application for an increase in overdraft limit is approved.	\$50 per overdraft approval
Annual Overdraft Fee	Payable when your account is opened and on each anniversary of its opening.	\$31
Visa Credit Card Annual Fee	Debited to your Visa Credit Card Account on the first statement of account after acceptance of the contract, and then annually in advance.	\$30
Police/Customs Value Home Loan Establishment Fee	Applies to Variable and Fixed interest. Includes cost of valuation up to an amount of \$230. Where the cost of valuation is in excess of \$230 the Excess Valuation Fee shall apply.	Currently \$545
Premium Home Loan Establishment Fee	Applies to Variable, Fixed and Interest Only. Includes cost of valuation up to an amount of \$230. Where the cost of valuation is in excess of \$230 the Excess Valuation Fee shall apply.	Currently \$545
Bridging Home Loan Establishment Fee	Includes cost of valuation up to an amount of \$230. Where the cost of valuation is in excess of \$230 the Excess Valuation fee shall apply.	Currently \$880
OneChoice Home Loan Establishment Fee	Includes cost of valuation up to an amount of \$230. Where the cost of valuation is in excess of \$230 the Excess Valuation Fee shall apply.	Currently \$545
Goldrate Home Loan Establishment Fee	Includes cost of valuation up to an amount of \$230. Where the cost of valuation is in excess of \$230 the Excess Valuation Fee shall apply.	Currently \$545
Retirement Lifestyle Loan (Reverse Mortgage) Monthly Account Fee	Payable monthly during the term of this loan.	\$7

Fee		Description	Amount
Retirement Lifestyle Loan (Reverse Mortgage) Security Revaluation Fee		Payable and debited to your Retirement Lifestyle Loan account 5 years after initial funding and every 5 years thereafter.	At Cost
AMS Securitised Home Loan Top-Up Application Fee		Payable on application or funding. Refer to your loan contract for other fees and charges.	\$315 per application
Mortgage Loan Top Up / Increase in Credit Limit Fee		Payable on application or funding. Applies to all Home Loan Applications.	\$315 per application
Mortgage Loan Rate Lock Fee		Payable when you request the Bank, before loan disbursement, to lock-in an advertised or offered interest rate (whether fixed or capped) to apply to your loan after disbursement.	Currently \$300
		Note: The Bank will hold the rate for a maximum period of 90 days from the time of payment of the rate lock fee. The loan must be disbursed within that time for the locked-in rate to apply.	
Early Repayment Fee		<ul> <li>Payable if during any fixed rate period applicable to your loan, you:</li> <li>repay the whole of your unpaid balance (full early repayment)</li> <li>pay \$5000 or more in repayments above the contractual repayments (partial early repayment); or</li> <li>become obliged to repay the whole loan after you have defaulted (full early repayment) and the fixed rate that applied to the loan is more than the prevailing market interest rate at the time of early repayment.</li> </ul>	The amount of any Early Repayment Fee is calculated to recompense us for loss due to the early repayment. For details, see clause 20 (Fixed Interest Loans) or your loan contract. Contact Loans Services Department on 131 728 for a written payout figure.
Excess Valuation Fee		Payable if and when the costs of valuing your security property/ies exceeds \$230 in aggregate over the term of the Ioan. Calculated as an amount of the excess.	At Cost (less \$230 Valuation allowance)
Additional Valuation Fee		Payable to our valuer if more than one security is required for your loan and/or when application is made for additional finance and/or altering the title of the property or the property itself and Police Bank Loan policy dictates that a subsequent valuation is required.	At Cost
General Consent Fee		Payable when you ask for our consent to any matter relating to a loan contract or security (other than a matter for which a separate fee is payable).	\$250 per security
Second Mortgage Consent Fee		Payable when you ask us to consent to a second mortgage	\$75 per security
Production of Title Fee		Payable to our solicitors when you ask us to produce the certificate of title of your property to enable registration of a plan or any document dealing with your property.	\$110
Schedule of Fees and Charges	Page 14	Schedule of Fees and Charges	Page 15

Fee	Description	Amount
Substituting Securities Fee	Payable to us when you substitute an existing property with a new property as security for your home loan.	\$315 per security
Substitution of Security Legal Fee	Payable to us when you substitute an existing property with a new property as security for your home loan.	\$605
Consent to Subdivision Fee	Payable when you ask for our consent to register a subdivision or other plan or dealing.	\$162 per plan
Mortgage Discharge Preparation Fee	Payable when you ask us to prepare a discharge of mortgage. Note: This fee does not include registration costs for the land titles office.	\$294 per security
Stamp Duty	Payable at the rate charged by the Office of State Revenue or its interstate counterparts when payable by law.	At Cost
Stamp Duty Increase Fee	Payable at the rate charged by the Office of State Revenue or its interstate counterparts when topping up an existing loan where the original stamp duty is not sufficient; when payable by law.	At Cost
Insurance	Insurance requirements may vary from applicant to applicant. Any compulsory insurance requirements will be advised on application. For example, you may be required to pay for Lenders Mortgage Insurance; and must pay mortgage property and Motor Vehicle Insurance.	At Cost
Other Legal/Solicitors Fees	Payable to our solicitors when you ask us to take any action in respect of the loan or your property and we incur legal fees.	At Cost
Future Legal Costs and Disbursements Relating to any Variations, Dealings, Discharges	Payable to our solicitors when we incur costs in the enforcement of your contract. The costs may include court costs, legal costs, repossession costs and administrative costs.	At Cost
Monthly Product Split Fee	Payable if you split your Credit Limit between an Equity Maximiser Loan and another product, (such as a principal and interest housing loan).	\$7 per additional product per month during the period of the split, debited to the account for the other product each month.
Pest & Building Inspections Fees	Payable to inspectors if we require a pest or building inspection.	At Cost
Other Third Party Costs	Any other costs charged to us by a third party will be passed on to you. Some examples are as follows: Title Change Fee Land and Property Information Search Fees Land and Property Information Registration Fees	At Cost

Fee	Description	Amount	
Real Time Gross Settlement (RTGS) Transfer Fee	Payable when we are required to transfer settlement funds to an agent on behalf of our Solicitor.	\$10.50	
Bank Cheque Fee	Any costs charged to us from a third party to At Cost obtain a bank cheque will be passed to you.		
ssue of Statutory Default Notice Legal Fees	Payable to our solicitors when a notice is At Cost issued by our solicitors notifying you of your default under the terms of a loan contract and the related mortgage provided as security.		
Default Letter Fee	Payable when we send you a default letter \$6.50 asking you to remedy a default under a loan contract.		
Default Notice Fee	Payable when we send you a default notice \$21.5 under a loan contract when a default remains unremedied after we have sent you a default letter.		
Late Payment Fee	Charged where the whole or any part of your \$10 loan repayment remains unpaid after 14 days past the due date. Applies to all Police Bank loans and continuing credit accounts.		
Independent Legal Advice/Interpreter Service	You may be advised to seek independent legal At Co advice or interpreter services. If so, you will be charged a fee by the service provider.		
Additional Statement Fee	Payable when you request an additional \$5 for statement. Retrie \$1.50		
Document Retrieval Fees	Payable on request for documents to be Minimum 3 retrieved. per hour re fee and m \$30 per ho administra		
PPSR Fees (Personal Properties Security Register)	Certain loans will require us to use the services of PPSR. If we do so, the following may be payable: PPSR Registration Fee At Cost PPSR Financier Interest Enquiry At Cost PPSR Variation of Interest At Cost		
Overdrawn Overdraft Fee	Payable when you exceed your credit limit by \$15 \$75 or more within a calendar month. Interest will also be charged on any amount overdrawn in excess of the approved credit limit at the then current annual percentage rate.		
Dishonoured Member Cheque Fee	Per cheque dishonoured.	\$9	

Fee	Description	Amount
Dishonoured Cheque Fee	Payable when a cheque or other payment to your account is dishonoured.	\$9
Other Government Duties & Taxes	Any applicable Government Taxes, Duties and Fees will be passed on to you.	At Cost

Fees & charges debited to a loan account will incur interest charges.

Please note:

Fees & charges relating to the Equity Maximiser Loan are contained in the Schedule of Fees and Charges Equity Maximiser booklet. Additional information on fees and charges for business loans or securitised mortgages is available on application.

Notes	Notes

## **Contact Us**

## **Police Bank**

Assistance Centre Phone: 131 728 E/N: 88899

**Direct** Phone: 131 728 E/N: 88884

**Sydney** Phone: (02) 8268 2500 E/N: 44850

**Parramatta** Phone: (02) 9841 8200 E/N: 44700

**Penrith** Phone: (02) 4720 5000 E/N: 44750

Newcastle Phone: (02) 4908 6200 E/N: 44870

Canberra Phone: (02) 6206 7000 E/N: 44860

**Goulburn** Phone: (02) 4827 1000 E/N: 44730

Gosford Phone: (02) 4320 0200 E/N: 44880

Wollongong Phone: (02) 4221 9000 E/N: 44830

Campbelltown Phone: (02) 4640 7000 E/N: 88839

Port Macquarie Phone: (02) 6582 9900 E/N: 44840

Norwest Phone: (02) 8814 3000 E/N: 44790

Email info@policebank.com.au Website www.policebank.com.au

## **Customs Bank**

policeban

member owned banking

Assistance Centre: 131 728 Canberra Phone: (02) 6243 8900 Mascot Phone: (02) 8335 4200 Melbourne Phone: (03) 9642 1003 Email info@customsbank.com.au Website www.customsbank.com.au







# **Interest Rates**

#### Savings Accounts<sup>1</sup> EASY ACCESS ACCOUNT [S1] \$0 to \$499 0.00% p.a. \$500 to \$20,000 0.05% p.a. \$20,001 to \$50,000 0.07% p.a. \$50.001 or more 0.10% p.a. BUDGET MANAGER ACCOUNT (S2) Whole Balance 0.10% p.a. **CHRISTMAS CLUB ACCOUNT** (S3) 1.75% p.a. Whole Balance PENSIONER MAXIMISER <sup>2</sup> (S5) NOT AVAILABLE FOR NEW BUSINESS \$0 to \$46,600 1.00% p.a. \$46,601 or more 2.50% p.a. **INSURANCE SAVER ACCOUNT** [S6] \$0 to \$499 0.00% p.a. \$500 to \$20,000 0.05% p.a. \$20,001 to \$50,000 0.07% p.a. \$50,001 or more 0.10% p.a. **ONLINE SUPERSAVER ACCOUNT**\*(S8) \$0 to \$499 0.00% p.a. \$500 to \$5,000 0.75% p.a. \$5,001 or more 1.75% p.a. **SAVINGS PLUS ACCOUNT** (S10) \$0 to \$499 0.10% p.a. \$500 to \$2,000 0.25% p.a. \$2,001 to \$10,000 0.50% p.a. \$10,001 to \$30,000 0.75% p.a. \$30,001 or more 1.75% p.a. **SAFEGUARD ACCOUNT** (S11) \$0 to \$499 0.00% p.a. \$500 to \$20,000 0.05% p.a. \$20,001 to \$50,000 0.07% p.a. \$50,001 or more 0.10% p.a. **MARKET LINKED ACCOUNT** (S15) Fluctuates in accordance with weekly money market trends. A minimum of \$5,000 to be maintained [Note: \$0 to \$4,999 at 0.25%] Call 131 728 to obtain current interest rate **RETIREMENT PLUS** (S17) Whole Balance 1.75% p.a. BONUS SAVER ACCOUNT 3 (S23) \$0 to \$499 0.10% p.a. \$500 to \$10,000 0.25% p.a. \$10.001 or more 0.50% p.a. Bonus Rate <sup>4</sup> 2.15% p.a. DYNAMO CHILDREN'S SAVINGS ACCOUNT 28 (S24) \$0 to \$499 0.25% p.a. \$500 or more 1.25% p.a. Bonus Rate <sup>4</sup> 1.75% p.a.

#### Home Loans

How Fixed and Variable Interest Rates Work

	Comparison Rate <sup>*</sup> 3.76% p.a.		
Variable Rate 3.69% p.a.	Comparison Rate 3.76% p.a.		
<u>GOLDRATE HOME LOAN</u> <sup>5</sup> ^ (L21)			
Variable Rate 4.04% p.a.	Comparison Rate <sup>*</sup> 4.12% p.a.		
POLICE VALUE HOME LOAN 6 (L23)			
2 Year Fixed Rate <sup>7</sup> 3.99% p.a.	Comparison Rate <sup>*</sup> 4.42% p.a.		
3 Year Fixed Rate <sup>8</sup> 4.04% p.a.	Comparison Rate <sup>*</sup> 4.40% p.a.		
5 Year Fixed Rate <sup>9</sup> 4.58% p.a.			
Variable Rate <sup>10</sup> 4.42% p.a.	Comparison Rate <sup>*</sup> 4.50% p.a.		
PREMIUM HOME LOAN (L26) - OWNER OCCUPIED	)		
2 Year Fixed Rate <sup>11</sup> 3.99% p.a.	Comparison Rate <sup>*</sup> 4.68% p.a.		
3 Year Fixed Rate <sup>12</sup> 4.04 p.a.	Comparison Rate <sup>*</sup> 4.63% p.a.		
5 Year Fixed Rate <sup>13</sup> 4.58% p.a.	Comparison Rate <sup>*</sup> 4.75% p.a.		
Variable Rate <sup>14</sup> 4.74% p.a.	Comparison Rate <sup>*</sup> 4.82% p.a.		
Interest Only Variable Rate <sup>15</sup> 4.74% p.a.	Comparison Rate <sup>*</sup> 4.79% p.a.		
PREMIUM HOME LOAN 16 [L26] - INVESTMENT PUI	RPOSE		
2 Year Fixed Rate 3.99% p.a.	Comparison Rate <sup>*</sup> 5.01% p.a.		
3 Year Fixed Rate 4.04% p.a.	ar Fixed Rate 4.04% p.a. Comparison Rate <sup>*</sup> 4.93% p.a.		
ear Fixed Rate 4.58% p.a. Comparison Rate <sup>*</sup> 4.99% p.a.			
Variable Rate 5.14% p.a.	iable Rate 5.14% p.a. Comparison Rate <sup>*</sup> 5.22% p.a.		
Interest Only Variable Rate <sup>15</sup> 5.14% p.a.	Comparison Rate <sup>*</sup> 5.19% p.a.		
PREMIUM BRIDGING LOAN 17 (L26)			
Variable Rate 5.74 p.a.	Comparison Rate <sup>*</sup> 5.84% p.a.		
EQUITY MAXIMISER HOME LOAN *18 (S28/29) NOT AVAILABLE FOR NEW BUSINESS			
Variable Rate 4.95% p.a.			
ONECHOICE HOME LOAN <sup>19</sup> (L22) NOT AVAILABLE FOR NEW BUSINESS			
24 Months Fixed (as per contractual rate) then reverts to OneChoice Variable rate currently 4.94% p.a.			

## **Credit Cards**

VISA CREDIT CARD <sup>20</sup> (S14)	
10.76% p.a.	

### Personal Loans

How Fixed and Variable Interest Rates Work

EASY ACCESS OVERDRAFT 20 (S1)		
11.96% p.a.		
<u>GREEN LOAN 21 [L9]</u>		
Fixed Rate 6.49% p.a. Comparison Rate <sup>*</sup> 6.63% p.a.		
PERSONAL LOAN		
Fixed Rate <sup>22</sup> (L89) 9.99% p.a. Comparison Rate <sup>*</sup> 10.13% p.a.		
Variable Rate <sup>23</sup> (L9) 12.76% p.a.	Comparison Rate <sup>*</sup> 12.90% p.a.	
DRIVEAWAY CAR LOAN (L9)		
Fixed Rate <sup>24</sup> 7.19% p.a.	Comparison Rate <sup>*</sup> 7.33% p.a.	
Variable <sup>25</sup> 10.49% p.a. Not available for new business	Comparison Rate <sup>*</sup> 10.63% p.a.	

Variable Loan 9.69% p.a.

Comparison Rate<sup>\*</sup> 9.83% p.a.

#### Term Deposits<sup>1</sup>

INTEREST PAID AT MATURITY		
I1 – 3 months	\$1,000 to \$9,999	2.15% p.a.
I5 – 3 months	\$10,000 or more	2.35% p.a.
I5 – 4 months	\$10,000 or more	2.35% p.a.
I5 – 5 months	\$10,000 or more	2.40% p.a.
125 – 6 months	\$10,000 or more	2.45% p.a.
I5 – 7 months	\$10,000 or more	2.50% p.a.
112 – 12 months	\$10,000 or more	2.70% p.a.
INTEREST PAID EVERY SIX MONTHS		
129 – 24 months	\$10,000 or more	2.90% p.a.
131 – 36 months	\$10,000 or more	2.90% p.a.
132 – 48 months	\$10,000 or more	2.90% p.a.
133 – 60 months	\$10,000 or more	3.05% p.a.
INTEREST PAID EVERY MONTH		
I2 – 3 months	\$1,000 to \$9,999	2.00% p.a.
13 – 3 months	\$10,000 or more	2.25% p.a.
I10 – 6 months	\$10,000 or more	2.35% p.a.
124 – 12 months	\$10,000 or more	2.60% p.a.
152 – 24 months	\$10,000 or more	2.80% p.a.
153 – 36 months	\$10,000 or more	2.80% p.a.
154 – 48 months	\$10,000 or more	2.80% p.a.
155 – 60 months	\$10,000 or more	2.95% p.a.
SPECIAL INVESTMENT ACCOUNTS		
160 - 2 months	\$20,000 or more	1.75% p.a.
163 - 30 months <sup>27</sup> (Interest paid monthly to a savings account)	\$20,000 or more	2.95% p.a.

Reduced rate for early redemption is 1.75% p.a. Amounts over \$200,000 are accepted subject to confirmation.

## **Edvest Term Deposits**

(only available to members of the Edvest Service)

INTEREST PAID AT MATURITY		
I51 – 3 months	\$1,000 or more	2.20% p.a.
l4 – 3 months	\$10,000 or more	2.40% p.a.
l4 – 4 months	\$10,000 or more	2.40% p.a.
I4 – 5 months	\$10,000 or more	2.45% p.a.
123 – 6 months	\$1,000 or more	2.55% p.a.
l4 – 7 months	\$10,000 or more	2.65% p.a.
122 - 12 months	\$1,000 or more	2.80% p.a.
REGULAR INCOME PLUS (INTE	REST PAID FORTNIGHTLY)	
145 – 6 months	\$5,000 or more	2.35% p.a.
146 – 12 months	\$5,000 or more	2.60% p.a.
147 – 18 months	\$5,000 or more	2.70% p.a.
148 – 24 months	\$5,000 or more	2.80% p.a.
149 – 36 months	\$5,000 or more	2.80% p.a.
INTEREST PAID SIX MONTHLY		
158 - 24 months	\$10,000 or more	2.95% p.a.

Reduced rate for early redemption is 1.75% p.a. Amounts over \$200,000 are accepted subject to confirmation.

### **Edvest Savings Accounts**

REDIFUND	PLUS	(S21)

Plus bonus rate on market linked rate. A minimum of \$5,000 to be maintained at all times. [Note: \$0 to \$4,999 at 0.25%] Call 131 728 to obtain current interest rate

#### Terms & Conditions

Ref: 445

Effective date: 08 October 2018. Full terms and conditions available on application. Fees and Charges apply. For credit products lending criteria apply.

+ Products that do not contribute to Reduced Fees Program. See **<u>Reduced Fees Program</u>** for full terms and conditions

\* For all Police Bank Home Loans, the comparison rate is based on a loan of \$150,000 over a 25 year term. For all Police Bank Car and Personal Loans, the comparison rate is based on a loan of \$30,000 over a 5 year term. WARNING: This comparison rate is true only for the examples given and may not include all fees and charges. Different terms, fees or other loan amounts might result in a different comparison rate.

Investment real estate lending is not available.

1. Applicable as at 01/04/18 for (S) and 07/11/17 for (I) type accounts. Interest rates for (S) and (I) type accounts are subject to change without notice.

2. Pensioner Maximiser not available for new business. Applicable as at 22/11/13 for existing members.

3. Bonus Saver Account applicable as at 01/04/18.

4. Bonus rates are paid on top of standard rates if monthly criteria is met. Dynamo Savings Account: Bonus rate of interest applies if no withdrawals and a minimum deposit of \$20 is made within a month. Bonus Saver Account: Bonus rate of interest applies if no withdrawals and a minimum deposit of \$100 is made within a month.

5. Goldrate Home Loan rates applicable as at 17/10/16 for new business. Applicable as at 17/10/16 for existing business. Available for principal and interest loans only.

6. Police Value Home Loan only available to current serving Police Officers or a Retired Police Officer(s) who are a member of a Union that is associated with the Police Federation of Australia. This includes NSW Police Association (including Associate members), and the Australian Federal Police Association. Rate discounted against Premium Home Loan.

7. Police Value 2 Year Fixed Home Loan applicable as at 20/06/16 for new business. Available for principal and interest loans only.

8. Police Value 3 Year Fixed Home Loan applicable as at 28/12/16 for new business. Available for principal and interest loans only.

9. Police Value 5 Year Fixed Home Loan applicable as at 17/08/16 for new business. Available for principal and interest loans only.

10. Police Value Home Loan applicable as at 17/08/16 for new business. Applicable as at 19/09/16 for existing Members.

11. Premium 2 Year Fixed Home Loan applicable as at 20/06/16 for new business. Available for principal and interest loans only.

12. Premium 3 Year Fixed Home Loan applicable as at 28/12/16 for new business. Available for principal and interest loans only.

13. Premium 5 Year Fixed Home Loan applicable as at 17/08/15 for new business. Available for principal and interest loans only.

14. Premium Home Loan applicable as at 17/08/16 for new business. Applicable as at 19/09/16 for existing Members. Available for principal and interest loans only.

15. Premium Interest Only Home Loan applicable as at 17/08/16 for new business. Applicable as at 01/10/16 for existing members. Available for principal and interest loans only.

16. Investment Purpose Premium Home Loans applicable as at 17/10/16 for new business.

17. Premium Bridging Home Loan applicable as at 19/09/16 for new business. Applicable as at for existing members.

18. Equity Maximiser Home Loan not available for new business as at 23/08/18. Equity Maximiser standard variable rate applicable as at 01/06/16 for existing members.

19. OneChoice Home Loan not available for new business as at 14/01/15. OneChoice standard variable rate applicable as at 19/09/16 for existing members.

20. Visa Credit Card and Easy Access Overdraft applicable as at 01/06/15 for new business.

21. Green Loan applicable as at 06/06/16 for new business. For a detailed list of items available to purchase using the Green Loan visit the Green Loan page.

22. Fixed Rate Personal Loan applicable as at 06/06/16 for new business.

23. Variable Rate Personal Loan applicable as at 12/05/15 for new business.

24. Fixed Rate Driveaway Car Loan applicable as at 14/07/15 for new business.

25. Variable Rate Driveaway Car Loan not available for new business as at 06/06/16. Applicable as at 10/10/12 for existing members.

26. Greenrate Car Loan not available for new business as at 06/06/16. Applicable as at 17/07/08 for existing members.

27. I63 Investment Account Interest paid monthly to a savings account.

28. Dynamo Savings Account applicable as at 01/09/16.

29. Special Offer Goldrate Home Loan applicable as at 08/10/18. Only available to new owner-occupied borrowers who apply between 08/10/18 – 12/4/19 and have their loan funded by 07/06/19.

© 2018 Police Bank Ltd. ABN 95 087 650 799. AFSL/Australian Credit Licence No. 240018. | Privacy Notice | Privacy Policy |